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REEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRBES

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group’s consolidated financial results for
the 2023 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group’s strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

During the last fiscal year, customers intended to minimize inventory, and remained
cautious while placing orders. We observed the changes of customers’ supply chain
management policies and of their procurement pattern in fabrics. Facing the fierce
competition amidst high production cost, the Group implemented stringent cost
control and resources management, and took the production process improvement
initiative to enhance efficiency and optimize utilization rate of various production

facilities.

With ambition and enthusiasm, the Group’s management team took measures to
expand customer base and explore new markets. The Group launched innovative
functional products, and intensified the promotion of sustainable textiles.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

There are full of uncertainties which will confront us, namely geopolitics, sluggish
global economic growth, fluctuating exchange rate and increasing interest rate.
Nevertheless, the Group has been cautiously prepared to brave the challenges.

Creativity and innovation have always been among the building blocks for the Group’s
success. To capture potential market demand, accelerate merchandise development
and enhance customer satisfaction, the Group has reorganized our talented human
resources into a large research and development (“R&D") function. The new R&D
Department has started to proactively communicate with customers and brand
owners to grasp the latest market trends, which would enable the Group to provide
the best tailor-made products to fulfil customers’ needs. We are now driven by the
purpose of “to provide comfort and joy through unique textiles”.

Synergizing with business partners is one of the Group’s strengths. The Group has
cultivated long-term relationships with garment factories and traders, brand owners,
and strategic partners such as Toray, our substantial shareholder, which has extended
its assistance on technological ideas and environmental matters to facilitate our
penetration into the global market including Japan. The valuable support from our
business partners shall continue to be the rich source of confidence in our long-term
business success.
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| am delighted that Ms. Ling Chi Wo Teresa joined the board as an Independent
Non-executive Director earlier this year. Not only did her appointment enhance the
diversity of the composition of the board, but her ample business experience would
also bring in new ideas and insight for the Group.

The Group is committed to sustainable growth and has been constantly improving
and enhancing its environmental, social and governance performance. Our targets,
progress and performance have been set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

After few years' preparation, the Group is expecting the opening of a new factory in
Vietnam soon. With gradual recovery of economy, | believe the enlarged production
capacity contributed by the new factory shall provide the Group with favorable
opportunities for business growth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, bankers, community members relevant to our
production sites and other stakeholders for their continuous support to the Group
during the year. | sincerely hope our employees will be able to develop their fruitful
career path together with the Group, realise their potential and enjoy their balanced
life.

I ' would also like to thank our shareholders for their continuous support and
confidence in the Group during the past year.

On behalf of the Board

Masaru OKUTOMI
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBHWED T

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of textiles products, including high quality cotton and
synthetic knitted fabrics.

Revenue

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$5,018.7
million (2022: approximately HK$6,066.3 million) representing a decrease of 17.3% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2022, as a result of the combined effect of a
decrease of 24.5% in sales volume and an increase of 9.6% in average sales price.

Revenue generated from sales of goods from different geographical locations (as
determined by where the products were delivered to) is set out in note 5 to the
financial information of the Company on page 109.

Other incomes comprising, among others, sales of scrap materials and utilities income
are set out in note 22 to the financial information of the Company on page 144.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$4,528.7 million (2022: approximately
HK$5,290.0 million) representing a decrease of 14.4% as compared with the year
ended 31 March 2022 which is consistent with decrease in revenue.

Profit

During the year under review, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$268.6 million (2022: approximately HK$572.7 million)
representing a decrease of 53.1% as compared with last year because of (i) the drop
in sales revenue; (i) higher fixed cost absorption arising from lower utilization of
production facilities in Panyu Plant; and (iii) an impairment loss arising from the
Company'’s investment in Teejay Lanka PLC. If the impairment loss of approximately
HKS$46.6 million is excluded, it represents a decrease of approximately 45.0% in profit.

Selling and distribution expenses
During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses including impairment
loss on trade receivables decreased to HK$41.1 million (2022: HK$73.1 million).

Administration expenses
The administration expenses slightly decreased to HK$162.1 million (2022: HK$178.6
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Contd)
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Finance costs
Finance costs increased by approximately 128.4% to HK$50.2 million (2022: HK$22.0
million) mainly due to increase in interest expenses on bank loans.

Trade receivables and trade payables turnover days
Trade receivables turnover days was 65 days while trade payables turnover days was
49 days.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately HK$43.5 million during
the year under review (2022: HK$66.8 million). The average effective tax rate of the
Group during the year under review was approximately 13.7% which was higher than
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2022: 10.3%). The increase in effective tax rate was
mainly attributed to increase in non-deductible exchange loss arising from non-trade
balance in Hong Kong companies compared with the year ended 31 March 2022.

Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the total assets of the Group were HK$5,529.3 million (2022:
HKS$5,944.2 million) representing a decrease of approximately 7.0%. The total assets
comprised non-current assets of HK$2,296.1 million (2022: HK$2,124.4 million) and
current assets of HK$3,233.2 million (2022: HK$3,819.8 million).

Key financial ratios are set out below:

Gross Profit Margin® EFZ=0
Return on Equity® B EHER

Interest Coverage Ratio® FMEBELEO

Notes:

(1) The calculation of Gross Profit Margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(2) The calculation of Return on Equity is based on profit for the year divided by total
equity and multiplied by 100%.

(3) The calculation of Interest Coverage Ratio is based on profit before interest expenses
on bank loans and tax expenses divided by interest expenses on bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE WA T

OVERVIEW (Contd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2023, the Group was in a net debt position (cash and bank balances
and time deposits less total borrowings) of HK$99.4 million (2022: net debt position
of HK$34.8 million). The increase in a net debt position was due to increase in
prepayment for property, plant and equipment as the construction project of second
Vietnam production site is on schedule.

The Group's principal source of working capital was cash generated from sales of its
products, supplemented with bank borrowings and a shareholder’s loan contributed
by our joint venture partner for the Vietnam subsidiary.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HKS$1,347.5
million (2022: HK$1,545.1 million) comprising of HK$44.5 million, the equivalent
of HK$907.9 million denominated in USS, the equivalent of HK$383.9 million
denominated in RMB, the equivalent of HK$2.9 million denominated in VND and the
equivalent of HK$8.3 million denominated in other currencies. The cash and bank
balances and time deposits were to finance the Group's working capital and capital
expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$1,320.3 million (2022: HK$1,453.7 million) and
shareholder’s loan of HK$126.6 million (2022: HK$126.2 million) contributed by our
joint venture partner to the Vietnam subsidiary. The said shareholder’s loan was of
equity nature and was not repayable within one year. The Group did not pledge any of
its assets for bank borrowing (2022: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$5,529.3
million (2022: HKS$5,944.2 million) representing a decrease of 7.0%. Non-current assets
and current assets were HK$2,296.1 million and HK$3,233.2 million respectively. The
above assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$2,191.0 million, non-current
liabilities of HK$249.8 million and equity attributable to Shareholders of HK$3,074.9
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Contd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Capital expenditure and capital commitment

The Group had been adopting cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital
expenditure in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure increased by 198.3% to HK$364.3 million (2022: HK$122.1 million)
which was mainly used for the construction project of second Vietnam factory and to
purchase machinery and to finance the environmental protection projects of Panyu
factory and existing Vietnam factory.

Details on the right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment are set out on pages
112 to 115 of this annual report.

Details of capital commitments are set out in note 31 to the financial information of
the Company on page 155 of this annual report.

Key liquidity or leverage ratios:

Current Ratio® BN R@
Quick Ratio® ERENH KO
Gearing Ratio® BAREEL RO
Debt to Equity Ratio?” B BRI R
Notes:

(4) The calculation of Current Ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities.

(5) The calculation of Quick Ratio is based on current assets minus inventories divided by
current liabilities.

(6) The calculation of Gearing Ratio is based on total borrowings and bills payable divided
by total equity multiplied by 100%.

(7) The calculation of Debt to Equity Ratio is based on total liabilities divided by total
equity multiplied by 100%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETRED

OVERVIEW (Contd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Risk Management on Foreign Exchange and Interest Exposure

The Group had been exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures with respect to the US Dollars, Renminbi and Vietnamese Dongs primarily.
The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures. The Group would hedge against certain of

its exposures in order to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and Vietnam. Except for certain
cash and bank balances and certain inter-company receivables denominated in
foreign currencies, transactions were generally conducted in a functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets

and liabilities was considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group had been using forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of its
foreign exchange risk. These forward foreign currency contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and were accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Lease Commitments
Details of the lease commitments are set out on page 155 of this annual report.

Pledge of Assets
No assets were pledged to obtain financing as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023
respectively.

Segmental Information
Details of segmental information are set out in note 5 to the financial information of
the Company on page 109.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

Events Subsequent to the Period
There was no significant event undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING

The Group has been sparing no effort in the investment of environmental protection,
energy consumption and reduction of wastage, and the achievements were well
recognised. During the year under review, the Company’s subsidiary in Panyu had
received the following awards:

Graded as an Environmental Integrity Enterprise (Green Label Enterprise) by
Guangzhou Municipal Ecological Environment Bureau in May 2022%,

Awarded with “Certificate of Merit (Manufacturing and Industrial Services)”in the 2021
Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence (HKAEE) in December 2022%,

Awarded as a Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent Partner
(Manufacturing) by Environment and Ecology Bureau of The Government of the
HKSAR and Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong
Province in March 2023".

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the Company contributed to develop innovative
products to meet the market needs. The Company has received multiple awards for its
new products including:

Awarded as a “Textile and Apparel Brand Competitiveness Enterprises of China in
2022" by China National Textile and Apparel Council ("CNTAC") in May 2022¢.

A superfine denier warp knitted peach skin velvet fabric with high elasticity was
awarded as 2022 Excellent Fabric (First Prize) in China's Dyeing and Printing Industry
by China Dyeing and Printing Association ("CDPA") in September 2022*,

A warp knitted stain fabric with high elasticity was awarded as 2022 Excellent Fabric
(Second Prize) in China’s Dyeing and Printing Industry by CDPA in September 2022%

The development and industrialization of a superfine high-stretch peach skin
velvet fabric with high elasticity was honored with the “Textile Light” - Innovation
Contribution Award of Knitted Underwear by CNTAC in October 2022,

A recycled eco-friendly fabric (casual and sport use) was certificated as the “China
Knitting Products Fashion Trends 2022/2023 — Best Technological Innovative Product
(Recommendation)” by China Knitting Industrial Association (“CKIA") in December
2022%

#  The English translated version is for reference only. If there is any inconsistency

between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 4,484 full-time employees (2022: 4,697).
There was no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group’s
remuneration package for its employees included salary, bonuses, allowances
and retirement benefits based on the performance, skills and knowledge of each
employee. The Group also provided additional benefits to its employees, for instance,
subsidized accommodation and meals for those working in production facilities,
accident and medical insurance, etc.

The Group will continue to provide regular trainings and competitive remuneration
package to employees in order to enhance their incentive and motivation to work.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK4 cents (2022: HK14 cents) per
share for the 2023 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK15 cents (2022: HK21
cents) per share, the total dividend for the 2023 Financial Year amounted to HK19
cents (2022: HK35 cents) per share.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The financial year ended 31 March 2023 was a year of stagnant demand and fierce
competition in the industry. The cost level remained high and the increased
production cost could not be fully reflected in the sales price.

Customers’ policy for purchasing have been tightened in order to minimize inventory
level. Furthermore, many end buyers have accelerated the enforcement of the
new strategy on supply chain management, which was accompanied by certain
readjustment on fabric and garment procurement pattern. More portion of fabrics
and garments have been allocated to developing countries in Southeast Asia, which
resulted in the drop in orders for Panyu factory, while the rise in orders have been
recorded in the Group's Vietnam factory.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

Under the circumstances, the management has put vigorous efforts in expanding
the domestic customer base for Panyu factory, in particular, on sportswear and high
quality synthetic fabrics. Leveraging on ample experience and strong technological
know-how, apart from fashion and apparels market, the Group has been developing
non-clothing applications such as bedding and mattress, fabrics for car interior etc. As
with all new products, it may take time to fully penetrate these markets, but the Group

considers the potential for growth of these areas should not be underestimated.

With the completion of the Group’s new factory in Vietnam by the end of the financial
year 2023/24, the Group’s capacity in fulfilling customers’ requirement for order
allocation is expected to grow substantially. With gradual rebound of sales volume,

the management expects that the Group’s performance will turnaround in 2024.

Facing the rapid change of economic and business environment, the management
has constantly streamlined production process to boost efficiency and adopted
stringent cost control and resources allocation.

The geopolitics, inflation, rise of interest cost, customers’ change of sourcing policies
have created a lot of unknowns for the future, and may lead to further challenges
in short term. As well-established textiles mill, Pacific Textiles will work towards
sharpening competitiveness by:

(i)  Streamlining production process

(i) Implementing stringent cost control and management, and resources allocation
(i) Enhancing creativity and innovativeness in product development

(iv) Expanding customer base and diversifying customer portfolio

(v)  Penetrating new markets

(vi) Adopting flexible treasury management to stabilize financial cost
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

At the same time, Pacific Textiles has worked together with our customers on
their carbon-emission target. To support customers who are committed to the
carbon neutral by 2050, the Group constantly explores low-emission measures to
reduce carbon emission and to mitigate global warming. Pacific Textiles is proud of
consistently achieving high score in the HIGG Facility Environmental Module (part
of HIGG Index developed by the Sustainable Apparel Coalition in order to score
development within sustainability and carbon footprint), reflecting the Group'’s
persistent efforts in reducing global environmental impact.

The management believes in the future. With the economic recovery of mainland
China, the domestic consumption and demand for fabric is expected to rise again.
In addition, the establishment of a new factory in Vietnam is a milestone of the
Group. With the expansion of production capacity in Vietnam, the management looks
forward to placing the Group on a medium-term growth trajectory.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

2022 /2023 Annual Report
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, aged 65, joined the Group on 1 July 2019 as executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. With effect from 1 October 2021, Mr.
Okutomi was re-designated from the Vice Chairman of the Board to the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Okutomi continues
to serve as an executive Director, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Moreover, Mr. Okutomi is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka
Plc., an associated company of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo
Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka. Mr. Okutomi is responsible to lead the management
team and oversee the overall production and operation of the Group, providing
corporate directions and formulating business strategies of the Group. Mr. Okutomi
holds a bachelor's degree in law from Hitotsubashi University in 1981 and after his
graduation, he joined the merchandise sales department (textiles) of Toray. Toray is a
company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He also held various senior positions including the managing director of
Toray Industries (South China) Co., Ltd. and Toray Industries (H.K.) Ltd. from May 2016
to 30 June 2019, and the deputy managing director of Toray Industries (China) Co.,
Ltd. From May 2016 to 30 June 2019, and has been given the title as senior director in
Toray. Mr. Okutomi has extensive experience in management of textiles business.

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 60, joined the Group in 2013 and became Chief Financial
Officer of the Group on 1 April 2014. He has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company from 1 July 2017 and the Company Secretary of the Company
from 12 August 2022. Mr. Tou has been a member of Nomination Committee of the
Company since 1 October 2022. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc.,, an associated company
of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka.
Mr. Tou has extensive experience in factory operations, financial management,
project management and ERP system. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate
financial management, information technology and back office operations. Mr. Tou
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was an executive director of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange during the period from 2007 to 2012.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEASEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO, aged 52, joined the Group in February 2022 as an executive
Director. Mr. Fukumoto has been a member of Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 1 October 2022. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Fukumoto is responsible for the Group’s budgetary control and
setting up of key performance indicators for fulfilling corporate goal and targets. Mr.
Fukumoto is leading the project of setting up a new factory in Vietnam. Mr. Fukumoto
graduated from the faculty of law in Tokyo University in 1995 and has been an
employee of Toray Industries, Inc. since 1995. Toray is a company listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, he was a senior staff of the Fibers & Textiles Strategic Business Planning
Department of Toray from May 2017 to March 2019 and was an Assistant General
Manager of the said Department since April 2019 to end of 2021. Mr. Fukumoto has

extensive experience in the textiles industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 71, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. Dr. Chan has been the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee since 2007. He was the former chairman and is
currently the non-executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in
planning and management. Dr. Chan has also been an independent non-executive
director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International)
Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited since 2015 and Human Health
Holdings Limited since 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City
Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree
in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is currently the adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. Dr. Chan was the former
chairman of Business Enterprise Management Centre of The Hong Kong Management
Association and was also a member of the advisory committee of the department of
management and marketing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 74, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Ng has been the Chairman of Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee since 2007. Mr. Ng has over 35 years of senior management experience
in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng was a director and a member of the
executive committee for Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand
listed company. He was an independent director of China Digital TV Holding Co.
Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and a non-executive director of
HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive officer of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company
and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng was the Honorary
Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Ng was a member
of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC) and an appointed member
of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under
the Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and
Administration.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 66, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Sze has been the Chairman of
Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee since 2007. Mr. Sze has senior management experience
in the private and investment banking industry serving high net worth clients and
institutions. Mr. Sze is an independent non-executive director of Wecon Holdings
Limited since 27 February 2019, which a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was the managing director, head of China and Hong Kong
of Julius Baer Bank; the chief executive officer of EFG Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head of investment of
Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive officer of Asia
Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEASEHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa, aged 64, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 March 2023. Ms. Ling has also been
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee since 1 March 2023. Ms. Ling possess ample years of
experience in business management. She has been working for Newtimes group
of companies, a privately held apparel development and sourcing group with its
headquarter in Hong Kong, for over 30 years. She became the director of Newtimes
(HK) Limited since 2014. In addition, Ms. Ling is currently a director of Ling Charitable
Foundation Limited. Ms. Ling holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology
from University of California, Berkeley. She also obtained a Master of Business
Administration Degree from California State University, East Bay.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GAO Jinhua, aged 57, is the Chief Operating Officer (Vietnam) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who has worked for the Group for more
than 20 years and is experienced in operational and production management. Prior
to taking up the current position, Mr. Gao has been the General Manager of the
Production Department. Mr. Gao graduated from Shanghai Normal University, major
in Chemistry in 1988.

Mr. ZHAO Qizhi, aged 57, is the Chief Operating Officer (PRC) and a director of a
subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997 and has over 25 years of
experience in the textiles industry. He is responsible for managing the engineering
department of the factories. Mr. Zhao holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University, China.

Mr. LAI Chi Man, aged 57, is the Chief Marketing Officer and a director of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years of
experience in the textiles industry. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Textile
and Clothing Marketing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree (The Kellogg — HKUST EMBA Program)
awarded by Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology jointly.

Mr. TSANG Sian Chung, Hubert, aged 46, is the Chief Information Officer and a
director of some of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in
2010 and now leads the Group's digitalization initiatives. Mr. Tsang has over 25 years
of experience in the IT field, ranging from performing academic research on high
performance computing to building large scale internet websites to building and
maintaining enterprise shared services. Mr. Tsang holds an MBA degree and Bachelor
of Computer Science, both from the University of Maryland, College Park.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. Mitsuru KAWABATA, aged 63, is the General Manager (HR & Administration)
who joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Kawabata holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Doshisha University. Upon his graduation from Doshisha University, Mr. Kawabata
joined Toray in 1984. He has extensive business development experiences in fibres,
fabrics, and garment as well as general management experience. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the managing director of Toray Ultrasuede Marketing, Inc. a subsidiary

of Toray.

Mr. Masanari MURAKAMI, aged 54, is the General Manager (Research &
Development Division) who joined the Group in 2021. Upon his graduation from
Faculty of Law, Kobe University in 1991, Mr Murakami joined Toray. Mr. Murakami
has worked as a knit textile salesman over 15 years in Japan and Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group, he was a director of Toray Industries (H.K.) Ltd. and was responsible
for textiles business and garment business.

Mr. Hiroyuki MATSUDA, aged 56, is the General Manager (Engineering) who
joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Matsuda is responsible for managing the engineering
department of the factories in China. Mr. Matsuda holds a Master Degree from
Graduate School of Letters of Kansai University, Japan. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a manager of Toray Industries, Inc. and has extensive experience in the
management of machinery, plant and equipment of factories.

Mr. CHUNG Chi Shing, aged 59, is the Assistant General Manager (Research &
Development Division — Inno-Tech Department & Material) and a director of a
subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has been serving for
25 years. He is responsible for dyeing and finishing technology, fabric development,
procurement of yarns, dyes and chemicals (DCA). Mr. Chung graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Textile Chemistry, with over 30 years of
experience in textiles industry. He is a holder of Chartered Colourist granted by the

Society of Dyers and Colourists.

Mr. WANG Sijie, aged 52, is the Assistant General Manager (Dyeing and Finishing) and
a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Wang is
responsible for the management of dyeing and finishing factory. Mr. Wang graduated
from the Hunan University, major in chemistry in 1994. Mr. Wang is a professorate
senior engineer and a holder of master degree. He is the Vice President of Guangzhou
Textile Engineering Society and a member of expert and technical committee of China
Knitting Industry Association (EMN#1 & T2 € BEREFREAHBE I XS
EXHEME B EZE E) Mr. Wang was awarded as outstanding chief engineer by
China Knitting Industries Association and technical innovation award by China Textile
Engineering Society.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERRRERASEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. Hidetoshi SUZUKI, aged 55, is the General Manager (Research & Development
Division) and he joined the Group as General Manager (Research and Development)
in 2021. Mr. Suzuki has over 30 years of experience in textiles and related production
technology development. Upon his graduation with a Bachelor’'s Degree of
Engineering from Yamagata University, he started his career in textiles industry with
Toray in 1990. Prior to joining the Company, he has extensive experience and had
worked in laboratories in Japan, China, and USA respectively, such as Du Pont-Toray
Co., Ltd,, Toray Fiber Research Center (China) and DuPont de Nemours, Inc. (USA).

Mr. LAU Tak Ho Kevin, aged 49, is the Assistant General Manager (Finance, Human
Resources Management & Administration) who joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Lau is
mainly responsible for group finance, human resources, administration, procurement
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Lau graduated with Engineering
(Hons.) and MBA degree in Development & Industrialisation from the University
of Liverpool in the United Kingdom and a Postgraduate Certificate in Professional
Accounting from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of Institute
of Public Accountants in Australia. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked in
an international accounting firm and various listed companies. He has extensive
working experiences in finance, cost control, human resources & administration and

procurement management.

Mr. CHAN Kam Yuen, aged 55, is the Assistant General Manager (Sales) who joined
the Group in 1998 and has been serving for 25 years. Mr. Chan graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry, with
over 30 years of experience in textiles industry.

Mr. CHENG Wai Keung, aged 59, is the Assistant General Manager (Operations
in Vietnam) who joined the Group in 2018. Mr. Cheng is responsible for human
resources, administration and procurement management in Vietnam. Mr. Cheng holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Laurentian University in Canada. He has extensive
experience in human resources, administration and procurement management.

Mr. Tomohisa FUKUNARI, aged 50, is the General Manager (Engineering) who
joined the Group in 2021. Mr. Fukunari is responsible for managing the engineering
department of a new factory in Vietnam. Mr. Fukunari holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Engineering of Kagoshima University, Japan. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
senior staff of Toray Industries, Inc. and has extensive experience in construction
management and the management of machinery, plant and equipment of factories.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products,
including high quality cotton and synthetic knitted fabrics.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year by
geographical locations of business operations is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group during the year and discussions on its future developments are
provided in the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis”in this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects might
be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The followings were the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group for the 2023 Financial Year. There might
be other risks and/or uncertainties in addition to those outlined below which were
unknown to the Group or which might not be material during the period under review
but will turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The macro-economic and political factors, such as trade barriers and restrictions,
posed uncertainty to the business of the Group. Slowing down of global economic
growth, fluctuating exchange rate and increasing interest rate were also the factors
that adversely affected the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on the achievement of our strategic
objectives including but not limited to acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals and/or
restructurings. The Group faced risk in its application of assets and capital towards
potential investments when business and investment opportunities had arisen.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk might be constituted due to unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
unfavourable judgements which disrupted or negatively affected the business
operations or financial conditions of the Group.

Failing to oblige by relevant applicable laws and regulations might constitute
compliance risk. The Group might suffer from financial losses or losses in reputation
due to any possible legal risk or requlatory sanctions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Policy risk

The change in governmental policies and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operated, such as amended environmental protection policies, might result
in adjustment to production method or increase in cost in fulfilling those statutory
standards.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 60 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK15 cents (2022: HK21 cents) per Share was paid on 21
December 2022 to the Shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK4 cents (2022: HK14 cents) per Share. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK4 cents will be
paid on 31 August 2023 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 21 August 2023.

The Board intends to maintain long term return for shareholders. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into consideration of various factors, such as the financial results of the
operation, general financial condition of the Group, future funding requirements on
capital, business operations and development, general market conditions, interest
of shareholders as a whole, legal requirements, and other conditions that the Board
deems relevant.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 7 August 2023 to
10 August 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 4 August 2023. The record date which determines the Shareholder’s voting right is
scheduled on 7 August 2023.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Cont'd)

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 17 August 2023 to
21 August 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 16 August 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2023
Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2023 Financial Year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,939 million (2022: HK$2,346 million) comprising share premium,
share-based reserve, retained earnings, and offsetting the treasure shares of the
Company.

Under the Companies Act (As Revised) (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands, in addition
to the retained earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves
of the Company are also available for distribution to the Shareholders provided that
the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the date on which any such distribution is proposed
to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the 2023 Financial Year.
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DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$399,000 (2022: HK$1,087,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Expenditure of approximately HK$364 million (2022: HK$122 million) was incurred
during 2023 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of the Group are set out in note 6 and 7 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2023 Financial Year, interest expenses of approximately HK$1,967,000 had
been capitalised (2022: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company repurchased a total of 2,687,000
Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of (excluding expenses)
HK$7,339,040. Such repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled on 8 November
2022. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value thereof.

Details of the repurchases of shares were as follows:

BR
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The repurchase of shares was made by the Directors, pursuant to the general mandate
granted by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 11 August 2022
with a view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value
per share and earnings per share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2023 and up to the date of report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2023 Financial Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 76.3% of the Group’s total sales and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 46.7%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 63.9% of the Group's total
purchases and purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 36.6%.

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors had owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interests in the Group'’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above:

Toray, a substantial shareholder of the Company, accounted for approximately 0.4%
of the Group’s total purchases. The purchase from Toray constituted continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Toray also accounted for approximately 0.6% of the Group’s total sales. The sales to
Toray constituted continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out in

note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the 2023 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman) (resigned with effect from 1 October 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (retired with effect from 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. TOU Kit Vai and Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel will retire by rotation from
the Board at the forthcoming AGM and will, being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election as Directors.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa, appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director effective from 1 March 2023, will hold office until the forthcoming AGM and
being eligible, has offered herself for re-election as Director.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years, renewable thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving at least six months' prior notice to another party in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors had
been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of each Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
commitment to the business of the Group.

Details of emoluments of every Director for the 2023 Financial Year are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his or her connected entity had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during or at the end of the 2023 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which
caused or might cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person had or might had with the Group
during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2023 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives (Note 1) of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (Note 1) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

EERRONEBRG cBERAR

R2023F3A31 0 ARREERERTHALR (1)
RARAGEFRAEEE (1) 2fkn  BBRORES
T EAREEFRBMERAZ3S2KETHFE ZREMA
TRIASTHEARARER A ERRABNT -

BRG2FR

Tou Kit Vai 607,000 - -
HEH
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 650,000 - -
S
Lau Yiu Tong (retired with effect from 53,393,000 - -
1 June 2023)

BRR (Ko03%6 A1 HEH)
Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert 450,000 = =
g (Note 2)

(R3t2)
Notes:

1. Within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert is the Chief Information Officer of the Company who was
granted share options of the Company. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
on pages 31 to 33 of this annual report.

3. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on

the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the Directors/Chief
Executives.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year under review were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES
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ESRNRONABRG 2 BER AR ()

B ESCIEEESN  R2023F3 8318 0 HE
ARREZXESTBRABRARRGHEMS
IAEH AR 2 D - ABRERHD REHHR - #
BEAMARBESRAEGROEI2GETHE
B2 ERMATREERARITHNE AR LB
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REEFEAREMER - SR EAEERR
FEAMEBARKNFEFLERAERBAR
RAERR MBS ERN - SR FITEEM L
SRR HART]  BERAE SR E AN
BRABAMESETARE RTEFARE
(EE PN IE AR Fil

TERERHEMALRARGH
HERDZESERAR
R2023F3A31B M TAT(KRAESE
BT ABBRIN AR ARG A8 7
RO EBRIEE R KB GG E 336 16E
FIREZECMAGRSEZERIABNT

R ZFE

Toray Beneficial Owner 405,394,000 (L) 28.03%
BEmEAA

Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation 98,886,000 (L) 7.02%
LR (Note 4)
(PffzE 4)

Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of a controlled corporation 98,886,000 (L) 7.02%
EEAEER (Note 4)
(PR 4)

FIL Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 98,886,000 (L) 7.02%
ZIEEEER (Note 4)
(Bt 52 4)

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved Lending Agent 82,557,317 (L) 5.86%
R HARIEA 82,557,317 (P)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS FEREREMATRRONABER G

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES ZERRAKE (E)
(Cont'd)
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d) B zHE (&)

Lam Wing Tak Beneficial Owner 14,566,000 (L)
MERTE BERERA
Interest of Spouse 718,000 (L)
[
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000(L)
ZREFEZAIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(B 3 5)
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial Owner 718,000 (L)
HEE ERBERA
Interest of Spouse 14,566,000 (L)
IR R
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000 (L)
ERETZAMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(PR T 5)
FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial Owner 70,732,429 (L) 5.01%
ERBBEA
Notes: M5

4. Pandanus Partners L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pandanus Associates Inc, and 4.

Pandanus Partners L.P. holds 38.71% shareholding of FIL Limited. Pandanus Associates
Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and FIL Limited are therefore deemed to be interested in
the 98,886,000 shares of the Company.

5. Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the spouse of Ms. Wong Bik Ha, vice versa. For the purpose of the 5.

SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

6. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on 6.

the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the respective
Shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, the

Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions

therein.

Options enabling the exercise of 22,820,000 Shares were granted on 18 July 2007
("Tst Grant”) and expired on 17 July 2017. Options enabling the exercise of 10,000,000
Shares were granted on 11 October 2013 (“2nd Grant”) will expire on 10 October 2023.
The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before the dates of the 1st
Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

e

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below).

Participants
The Board may grant options to any eligible participants, namely an
employee, Director or Non-executive Director (including INED) of any Member
of the Group.

"Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated
companies of the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”),
representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue

from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue at the date of grant of the options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) BRESS (8)
A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) A. BREFTEHNE (&
5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme 5. TEBREZRERERESEZE
R
(a) General vesting period (a) —MREBEH
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option RIEERE SR BARE S —
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different REBHARLAHSAT K
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be FEZRBREE T ZKRRIERS
more than 10 years from the date of grant. —HEH - BRERBBE TR

BEH AL 105 -

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any BIRERE B BIRE R EREMA
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met. HEZRETCRBKRGKER
FEAT{E -
(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme (b) BRIEEZ IR
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the BB 2 BIR /& £ A HI e
Listing Date. 104 -
6. Exercise price and payment on grant 6. THERFEHBNERK
(a) Exercise price (a) 7T1E1E
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall BREETEIB T 2 RMDITEER
be the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder HEFRETIBMNERERS
which shall not be less than the highest of: A EZEB T EERATEIA
ZEREA
(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days () EEERERL B8R E
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the EEARBEBEIME A RE
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets; KRR 2 FHWTE
(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily (i) REBRRFER B B BIAR IR B &2
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and FrERMmERMATRNG 2K
mE: &k
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares. (i) IR D 2 E1E °
(b) Payment on grant (b) B H 115
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option BEBALTHBEAREMARTES
granted to them. 2 BIRER AR o
7. Life of the Share Option Scheme 7. BRESTEIBERN
The Share Option Scheme was terminated automatically at midnight on the BREGEXNEE EHHE 108
day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date, in other FEmEBRA—BZEREBERIL
words, the Share Option Scheme was terminated as at 17 May 2017. ME 2 BRETEENR2017F5A
17 B8k -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

The share options issued under 1st Grant were fully exercised. The movement of
2nd Grant as at 31 March 2023 was as follows:

Percentage  Number of
Number of of total Share ~ Share Options
Date of Exercise Share Options Vesting Options ~ Vested/tobe ~ Exercisable
Grant  Grantee Price Granted Tranche Date Granted Vested Period
Bkt  EHE/
(354 BRELY %58
RERE ARA RE BREZE #X BERE  HAMH BREHA fl:E
1171012013 Eligible Employees HKS9.98 10,000,000 Tst 1111012016 30% 3000000 11/10/2016 -
AERER 99T ERi 10/10/2023
nd 11/10/2019 35% 3500000 11/10/2019 -
4 10/10/203
3rd 1111012022 35% 3500000 11/10/2022 -
£ 10/10/2023

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of
HKS$1.85 per Share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model”). The significant
inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the
date of grant of HK$9.98 per Share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately
2.09%, an expected option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45%
and annual dividend yield of 9%. HK$310,000 amortised fair value of share options
for the 2023 Financial Year was charged to the consolidated income statement
(2022: HK$586,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the
fair value of the share options.

B
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which were subject to reporting, and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholders’approval requirement under Chapter
14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to a
master agreement dated 30 March 2021 in relation to the sale of knitted fabric
manufactured and owned by the Group to Crystal International Group Limited
("Crystal”together with its subsidiaries, referred to as “Crystal Group”) with its term
up to 31 March 2024 ("Master Agreement relating to the Sale of Knitted Fabrics”).
The annual cap for each of the three years ended 31 March 2022, ending 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2024 shall be HK$2,000 million. Details of the Master
Agreement relating to the Sale of Knitted Fabrics were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2021.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Crystal
Group and the Group was approximately HK$929 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

According to the Listing Rules, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Crystal is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of a subsidiary of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Crystal Group
is therefore also regarded as connected person of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(2) SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 28 July 2017 in relation to sale of yarns by manufactured or
owned by Toray Industries, Inc. (“Toray’, together with its subsidiaries, “Toray
Group”) to the Group for a period ending 31 March 2020. The original term of the
agreement has expired on 31 March 2020 and the agreement has been renewed
for a further term of three years up to 31 March 2023. The annual cap for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 and ending 31 March

2023 shall be HK$230 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$11.4 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 30 March 2021 in relation to sale of fabrics by the Group to
Toray Group for a term of three financial years. The annual cap for each of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2024 shall be HK$100 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP (Cont'd)
During the 2023 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$31 million which was within the
relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. PwC had issued an unmodified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions (1) to (3)
as disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah, Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Ms. Ling Chi Wo Teresa
(who are Independent Non-executive Directors). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of
CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the 2023
Financial Year and discussed with the management and the auditor of the Company
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, an amended and restated terms of reference for Audit Committee was
effective from 1 January 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 54 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2023 Financial Year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by the Shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Masaru OKUTOMI
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERHE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance
to enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders of the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making processes are
properly regulated.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2023 Financial Year.

During the year, Mr. Masaru Okutomi served the roles of Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company simultaneously, hence the Company did not
comply with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Although the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company have not been segregated, powers and
authorities have not been over-concentrated as all major decisions are made
in consultation with Board members and senior management who possess the
relevant knowledge and expertise, as well as appropriate Board committees.
Hence, the current arrangements are subject to adequate checks and balances
notwithstanding such deviation. While the dual role arrangement has provided
strong and consistent leadership and facilitated the implementation of the
Group's business strategies, the Company will nevertheless review the structure
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstance.

B. THE BOARD

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, the
Board is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial
objectives of the Group and ensuring that Shareholders’ interests are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated
to the Executive Directors and the management. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees as set out in their respective terms of reference. All relevant terms
of reference are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business
and operating activities and development of the Group. Every Director is
committed to devoting sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the
Board and material matters of the Company and serving the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

1.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

Executive Directors are responsible for managing different aspects or
functions of the business of the Group. The Non-executive Directors advise
on business strategies of the Group and review its financial and operational
performance. The INEDs serve the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and provide independent reviews
on the issues of strategic direction, development, performance and risk
management of the Group.

All Directors had been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and
regulatory matters to ensure that they had a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that they were fully aware of their

responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of the Company,
including approving and monitoring all major policies, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control, risk management framework, significant
financial and operational matters as well as nomination of directors. The day-
to-day management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
management team of the Company under the supervision of the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carrying out all directions and strategies set by the
Board appropriately.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Profiles of current Directors are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report
and are available on the website of the Company. The list of Directors during
the 2023 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 1 October 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (retired with effect from 1 June 2023)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREIRE

B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)
3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)

There is no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
the Directors. The list of Directors and their roles and functions are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in textiles business,
administrative and managerial experience in PRC factories and financial
and accounting skill. Taking into account the nature and scope of business
operations and development of the Group, such balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives is appropriate for effective decision making. The
Board considers that each of the INEDs bring their own relevant expertise to
the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties
or in relation thereto.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfil
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at
the AGM, the Shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are
published on the website of the Company.

Each of the Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years
and each service agreement is renewable thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report

B. 2R ()
3. BERZAR ()

BYFHTES

PR IE L

hmEELE

BB (B 20234371 HEEZF)

EXCHBMETERBM - 75 -
FEAEMEARR EEREEA
BB B FNBAE O TSR B X P R AN X A
W -

EERBEAK EREFTAEE
MOEER 2 HERTISHERLR R
Bl B IR TR R E R
B AR R - ERAE
B XL ERBERMEERRE It
Fieat  KREBKZ TN TEY
HARYEMEERAE EFRR
REBIFFNTEETTRERELTZ
BEXANBHEAESER -

RERARILHFT ARACRESE
MERERETEBRAERABEER
AREAREDERITORFESTNER
ABEERR -

EEZE EERER
EZRKBRERANAERTEMA
THEEEUABE R ERIUESE
ERFIEKE - REEER N TR
BRENBITXERE - Aiee  EE
kB EBREALHERETE
ESSI

ERERBRERRBFAG LERA
ITHEES  RARARRZEMNE
REXEMAM  RBXARAWE
W BREAALTHEEEZRFE
SUE 9 NI E i

BHTES2ZEVT REME K
BERBHEN TEY EEHFP—
TAZ—FTEETPRAEAZTEE
EBAK L HESL



B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)
4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors had been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable
thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election pursuant to the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and then be
eligible for re-election at that AGM. In addition, at every AGM, one-third of the
Directors, including the chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by Shareholders at least once every three years. The Directors
appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election
as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the total
number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken into account in
calculating the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors
eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to Shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on their re-
election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to Shareholders by announcement. Any reasons
for resignation given by the Director shall also be included in such

announcement.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director had been provided with comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business operation of the Group and full
awareness of Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
from time to time updates the Directors on the latest development on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRELHSE

B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

5.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

(Cont'd)

According to the training records provided by the Directors, a summary of

which during the 2023 Financial Year is as follows:

B. 2R (&)

5. BEEZABNARBERRE (H)

RIFZEZBREAEIIREE - 72023
FHRFEHEANEICESEEN
T

Executive Directors

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI

Mr. TOU Kit Vai

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (resigned
with effect from 1 October
2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (retired with
effect from 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa
(appointed with effect from
1 March 2023)

Type of trainings
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BB A (R20234F
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A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

B. Reading materials
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)
6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

Number of Meetings

The Board met at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened
when deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for
the whole year had been informed to each Director. The attendance record of
the Directors is set out on page 44 of this annual report.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Board held 5 meetings to approve
interim and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to
consider dividend policy, to discuss significant issues and general operation of
the Company.

The Company held the AGM on 11 August 2022. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put forwarded were resolved by poll and were duly passed. The
poll result of each resolution was set out in the Company’s announcement
released on the even date.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of Board meeting will be served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the chairman. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available to the
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All
Directors are given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and relevant senior management members attend all the meetings of the
Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors or substantial Shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in
the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote
on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“"associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

B. 2R ()

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont’d)

Practice and Conduct of Meetings (Cont'd)

Directors have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary and
key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes
of the Board or Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details,
the matters considered by the participants of those meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board or Board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfil their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses with the
approval of the Board, if necessary.

Attendance of Meetings

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
AGM during the 2023 Financial Year are set out as follows:

6.

EEREBERBRERAE (A)
SEERRER (B)
BEEARERARFRARWENETE
BERMAHEEREFNERMR
B-EERNEBETZESERER
HESZE RS HEMERENE
BREBARE  TREHENESE
FENZEERERTHREERER
R -FERKNEHETZES R
BRETRAAANETE TRES
REBFEMER  BHEEBMNENS
BBEBS -

ot

EERAEREIRMETE
BEEVER - A S E E AL
EBE - EENETEH
ERIER IBRBT Y
BAEAARLN -

e
N
uca i I
i 3 X

o>
ok
W 4D & B

u

HESEER
BEFR20BFYREEHMEBE
EER BREEC -FTHEET -
REZEBgeRMREBAFAG 2R
EREFI T

Meetings attended/Meetings held

HESENE ETEERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
EZR ENZEE® FHZEEE REEZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairmanand ~ REB LA (TE# 55  NATEHR 3/3 33 1/1
Chief Executive Officer) TEAEZ)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer W& B L (B EHFHEE 55 NATEA N/A T i F 22 1/1
and Company Secretary) FRAWE)
Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO BLRE—E&&E 55 NATER 22 NATEA 1/1
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman) FERLE (BFE) 22 NATER 11 11 11
(resigned with effect from (K202 10 5 1 HEHE)
1 October 2022)
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (retired with effect  BIBFE & (R 2023 F 45 NATER NATER  NATERA 1/1
from 1 June 2023) 65 1HREE)
INEDs BUFHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael RS EL 5/5 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/1
Mr.NG Ching Wah MEELE 5/5 4/4 3/3 3/3 11
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel MBI SR 58 & 5/5 4/4 3/3 3/3 0/1
Ms. LING Chi Wo Teresa (appointed ~ EBMZ L (52023 F 1/1 7l 1/1 11 N/ANEA
with effect from 1 March 2023) 31 HEEZHE)
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

7. INEDS
The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise throughout the 2023 Financial Year.

As at 31 March 2023, the Board comprised eight members with four INEDs.
The number of INEDs met the minimum requirement prescribed under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring
that all matters submitted for discussion are discussed by the Board in a timely
and orderly manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the
management team and overseeing the operations for the Group.

During the year, Mr. Masaru Okutomi served the roles of Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company simultaneously, hence the Company did not
comply with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

The Company is of the view that it is in the best interest of the Company that
Mr. Masaru Okutomi, with his relevant in-depth expertise and knowledge in the
Group’s business, acts in the dual capacity as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Although the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are not segregated, powers and authorities have not
been over-concentrated as all major decisions are made in consultation with
Board members and senior management who possess the relevant knowledge
and expertise, as well as appropriate Board committees. Hence, the current
arrangements are subject to adequate checks and balances notwithstanding such
deviation.

While the dual role arrangement has provided strong and consistent leadership
and facilitated the implementation of the Group’s business strategies, the
Company will nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the
prevailing circumstance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREIRE

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES (Cont'd)

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all
Directors were properly briefed on the issues arising at the Board meetings and
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

The Company received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered
them to be independence of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements.

. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three main Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each
chaired by different INED, to assist the Board in overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions
and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The terms of reference (as revised) setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference to
the CG Code and are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervising the effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah, Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Ms. Ling Chi Wo Teresa. All of them are
INEDs. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual consolidated financial
information of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group with the management in
conjunction with the auditor. The Annual Report for the 2023 Financial Year has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2023 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of the 2023 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information and
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2022;
reviewing the audited annual consolidated financial information and final results
announcement for the 2023 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group'’s
internal audit department; assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The
attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the

table on page 44 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external
auditor.

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor during the years under review (and the previous year) are as
follows:

Audit Services EIZRE
Non-audit Services FEEZIRTE
— Tax consultation services — B0 7% B8 ) AR 75

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor and concluded that such services did not affect
the independence of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board about re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the coming year
and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to develop and formulate relevant procedures for
the nomination and appointment of Directors, make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of Directors with due regard to diversity of the Board
and management of the Board succession and assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The majority members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. As at the date of
the report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Dr.
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Ms. Ling Chi Wo Teresa, Mr.
Masaru Okutomi and Mr. Tou Kit Vai. Mr. Ng Ching Wah, an INED, is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the 2023 Financial Year
and reviewed the implementation of the board diversity policy. The major work
performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2023 Financial Year
included nominating new member to the Board, assessing the independence of
the INEDs and making recommendations in line with the Policy on re-election
of the Directors of the Company to be subject to rotation requirements at the
forthcoming AGM (including the new director(s) appointed by the Board who is
subject to re-election requirement under rule 114 of the Articles. The attendance
of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table on
page 44 of this annual report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) on 21 March
2014. A summary of this Diversity Policy, together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
and the Board members considered a number of factors, including but not limited
to educational background, professional qualifications, skills, industry experience,
age, gender and ethnic origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and
relevant provisions under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and
ethnic origin will not be set when short-listing the candidates.
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LERERESE
D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd) D. E2RZEE (A)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd) EERZTIAEEE)
Measurable Objectives AFEAE
The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives REZEGHIREBEERSZ T/IH

for achieving diversity and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The achievement of these objectives is measurable on an objective review by
shareholders of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of background
and experience of individual directors and the effectiveness of the Board in
promoting shareholder’s interests. In order for shareholders to judge whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, the Nomination Committee shall
provide sufficient information to shareholders about the size, qualifications of
each individual Board member and therefore, the Board as a whole.

GENDER DIVERSITY

At 31 March 2023, the Group employed around 4,484 people, being 67.5% male
and 32.5% female. The Company will take steps to promote gender diversity at
all levels of the Company, including but without limitation at the Board and the
management levels. The Company has achieved gender diversity at the Board
level with one female Independent Non-executive Director joining the Board
during the 2023 Financial Year. Appropriate emphasis on maintaining gender
diversity has been placed in the reviews of board composition, board diversity and
succession planning.
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The following table sets out the workforce gender diversity by region and gender TR E R R E AR 2023453 A 31
at 31 March 2023; HHETMRIZ TR
Percentage of Workforce
EIfEEDL
Total Male Female
Country EIES st B Z
China A 76.3% 50.9% 25.4%
Vietnam L 22.2% 15.7% 6.5%
Hong Kong and other offices in Asia BBEREMTMNRER 1.5% 0.9% 0.6%
Total wEt 100.0% 67.5% 32.5%
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their works, complexity
of their responsibilities and performances and to make recommendations to
the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own

remuneration.

The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah, Ms. Ling Chi Wo Teresa,
Mr. Masaru Okutomi and Mr. Kyuichi Fukumoto. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an
INED, is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the 2023 Financial Year.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2023
Financial Year included reviewing the remunerations of the Directors and senior
management with reference to the remuneration levels of directors and senior
management of comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for
the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 44 of this
annual report.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Executive Directors’
remunerations shall from time to time be determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as
follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;
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E. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

. COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tou Kit Vai, the executive Director, was appointed as Company Secretary on
12 August 2022 to report directly to the Board. The Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure the Board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the 2023
Financial Year, the Company Secretary complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

. DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in such
Code throughout the 2023 Financial Year.

. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2023 Financial Year which gave a true and fair view of financial
position of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company’s interim report and annual report
were prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the
Listing Rules. Directors were provided with adequate information to enable them
to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for
their approval. Furthermore, Directors were provided with monthly updates on
the Group's performance to enable them to discharge their duties.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibility to Shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 59 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. From time to time and at least annually, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with
the ever-changing business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and credibility of the review, an
independent consultancy firm has been engaged to periodically conduct the
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group by reviewing the investigation results
of management report and internal audits, and considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2023 was effective and adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to
time reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems and adopts corresponding
measures. Certain management committees were set up to set policies and
monitor potential internal control weakness in order to ensure that they meet

with the dynamic and ever-changing business environment.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
training programmes, budget, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function, through the Internal
Audit Department, the Audit Committee and with assistance of an independent
consulting firm.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system including
confidential channel which enables employees, business partners and suppliers
to raise concern, in confidence, about the possible improprieties in any matter
relating to the Company, reported case will be assessed with due care, with top
management oversight and for valid compliant, appropriate action will be taken
to address the concern.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
Shareholders and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy
of information disclosure to Shareholders and to protect the interests of
Shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote
effective communication, the Group maintains a website allowing Shareholders
to access updates on the Company's particulars where the Company’s
announcements, financial information, shareholders’ communication policy and
other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with Shareholders through general
meeting of the Company to communicate with Shareholders. The chairman of
the Board, the representative of each committee and the external auditor attend
the general meeting to answer any questions from Shareholders. A separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate
issue. A Shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and
vote in his stead.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website,
www.pacific-textiles.com. where information and updates on the Company's
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.

The relevant part of the shareholders’ communication policy was reviewed during
the year. Sufficient channels for shareholders to communicate their views on
various matters affecting the Company and the steps to solicit and understand
the views of shareholders and stakeholders were considered to be sufficient. The
implementation of the policy and the communication with shareholders were
effective.

. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
Any one or more shareholders, holding not less than one-tenth of the voting
rights, on a one vote per share basis, in the share capital of the Company may,
in accordance with requirements and procedures set out in the Articles of the
Company, make a written requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting. The
objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Cont'd)

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
(Cont’'d)

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out
above.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Notice of all general meetings shall be sent to Shareholders in accordance
with the Articles and the requirements of Listing Rules. Notice for AGM and all
other general meetings shall be sent at least 20 clear business days and 10 clear
business days prior to the meeting respectively.

VOTING BY POLL

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be
decided on a poll save that the Chairman may, in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter as prescribed
under the Listing Rules to be voted on by a show of hands. The Chairman will
explain detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
Shareholders on voting by poll. The results of the poll, if any, will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited (Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong and Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries
together with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail
address, by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to ir@pacific-textiles.com.

The Board also encourages Shareholders to attend general meetings to make
enquiries directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The current Memorandum and Articles of Association was amended and restated
on 11 August 2022, and is available for viewing on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. There were no further changes to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association since such amendment and restatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 60 to 163,
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue recognition.

Key Audit Matter
BRETEH

Revenue Recognition

LN 34

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group'’s accounting policies on revenue
recognition and note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of
goods for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Bl EEERANEHKRARINEBOR  F2HME2.20 -
BERBE203F3ANBLFEHERRABFRANIN B
SRKEES -

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to HK$5,018,735,000. The Group has operations in
several geographical locations, and derives revenue from sales to
multiple customers.
BZE2023F3A3ALFEHEEEMABIALRS5018735000
Bt EEERZEMERLEEY  UNHZETFHEDNS
WA o

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the price to
sell the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified location
and the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customers.

EEMNEHRERERF ARNERTEPRE)  MEP
HHEEmNEREFRENGEE  EXBFAIETERPE
MERNABRAEDRR X BEXERIABA -BEERNEEHE
EME - EREMBEXEAREEBRERFK @ AEERM -

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue
transactions derived from sales to multiple customers in different
geographical locations such that we have incurred significant time
and resources in carrying out our work in this area.

BT Z AR AR EETRMERZ @R HE 6 U
ARGERN  MBEMRETRZEENITHEETE T RERMH

BERETER
MRETEFESBRBERMANEXHE B8
HARGAVBEBRRNETRAEENSE
B ZERRRERMBAERESMBR
REHABRBETRIEN - RATEZE
FHREHREBNESR -

BMAEE P ERNBRE FRERARE
RER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNESF D AEEBREESSZH

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key internal
controls that are present in the Group's sales process from end-to-
end.

BMPETH FHEBREEEES

P ERELHE ©

BEREHSBRET MR

We tested samples of sales transactions against invoices and other
supporting documents. To the extent that those sales have been
settled, we also reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank
statements in support of the payments made by the customers.
BMEHHBEERAMIHEXHHEEER FHIEL BRI -
MZEHEEDHEE  BMNTEBEHIXBEL N RERITER
BAERRIEITRE -

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date to assess whether sales
transactions were recognised in the correct reporting periods.
AN BHPEARANEREEABRAYPMEELENHEER
5 LA HEER SR BN EMO RS AR R -

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related
journal entries by inquiring management of their nature and
inspecting the relevant supporting documents.

BN ITEEEERBAMEREERFME REHEE X
M AR BB ETRIA -

We found that the Groups' sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group's accounting
policy for revenue recognition.
MR ESEFAISENHEERFERR
REABE BT AER -

BEE WA RE



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have
obtained some of the other information including Corporate Information, Chairman'’s
Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management, Director's Report, Corporate Governance Report, Financial Summary
and Schedule of Group’s Properties prior to the date of this auditor's report. The
remaining other information, including the Environmental, Social and Governance
report and the other sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the annual report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BHERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeqguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lam Chun Yee, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBEEH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 March 2023

FRRREX

HE203F3A3MHIEFE

Revenue WA 5 5,018,735 6,066,310
Cost of sales k=N 23 (4,528,748) (5,289,992)
Gross profit ER 489,987 776,318
Other income and other gains - net HA YA R B U e — % 58 22 58,867 92,413
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables JE Wt BR R BB (B 12 228 366
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERS 23 (41,285) (73,476)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 23 (162,136) (178,594)
Operating profit B R A 345,661 617,027
Finance income R TN 25 49,908 16,125
Finance costs BRI 25 (50,189) (21,975)
Share of profits of associates DR QA2 R 18,425 34,890
Impairment of interests in an associate H-REERRNER CRE (46,609) =
Profit before income tax P18 %4 A& F 317,196 646,067
Income tax expense Frigfim sz 26 (43,547) (66,832)
Profit for the year FEER 273,649 579,235
Profit attributable to: THATEERF

Equity holders of the Company RABIERFFAA 268,572 572,677

Non-controlling interests FE 122 Il 1 7 5,077 6,558

273,649 579,235

Earnings per share attributable to FRARRBIRGZFEEA

equity holders of the Company for the year FEAE G AR & F)

(expressed in HKS per share) (A RAEITIITR)

- basic —ER 27 0.19 0.41

~ diluted —#5E 27 0.19 0.41

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MIEEN

FR2ERER

HE203F3A3MHIEFE

Profit for the year FEEA 273,649 579,235
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mElA -
Items that have been or may be BB S HEZ B

reclassified to profit or loss: EH -

Currency translation differences INEME EE (199,690) 116,398
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEBRALRE 73,959 695,633
Attributable to: THIA LB :

Equity holders of the Company AATIEREFBA 71,645 687,438

Non-controlling interests JE4E Bl MR IS 2,314 8,195

73,959 695,633

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

WA EAR A 2 U aa R B L BE R 2 MY 5 — GBS

e
=,
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As at 31 March 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Interests in associates
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Deferred income tax assets
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
Share capital
Share premium

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

720233 A31H

Note
B 5E
BE
FRBEE
W WEREE 6
EREEE 7
NGl 9
BRARER AHMEEE AR
TRIEE 10
RIEPISTHERE 19

M WE M RN RIE 13

REBEE

FE 11
FEMER K EE 12
e BNREREA

JE U R T8 13
JFE U Bt 2 R R 5K IE 32(b)
BERAREFABRED

SREE 14
RHSRITER 15
RekRe&EHEER 15
EEHAE
R
AATEZFEAELER

LN 16
f& 15 % B 16
1 17
JEHEHI RS
HBE

2023
2023 &
HK$’000
FHET

1,544,648
178,805
315,869

427

19,632
236,728

2,296,109

964,821
827,693

91,987
938

276
160,383
1,187,110

3,233,208

5,529,317

1,408
1,295,880
1,777,576

3,074,864
13,713

3,088,577

2022
2022 4F
HK$'000
FH&IT

1,443,149
192,186
359,368

427

19,240
110,020

2,124,390

1,236,784
945,591

46,895
1,388

44,018
1,545,128

3,819,804

5,944,194

1,411
1,303,246
2,114,468

3,419,125
11,399

3,430,524



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2023

RREEARR(H)

720233 A31H

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

LIABILITIES aE&
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings & 18 126,576 126,218
Lease liabilities HEBRRE 7 7,502 7,974
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHEE 19 73,377 79,845
Other non-current provision HihIEmeh i 21 42,320 37,957
249,775 251,994
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings BE 18 1,320,277 1,453,683
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 20 629,088 592,691
Accruals and other payables FEEHIE B K E < RRIE 21 182,052 137,778
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 25,808 27,141
Financial liabilities at fair value through BARBE A BENEHARE
profit or loss 14 77 -
Current income tax liabilities BVHAFTIS B & & 33,663 50,383
N 2,190,965 2,261,676
Total liabilites  &Af®® 2,440,740 2513670
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBELERE 5,529,317 5,944,194

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on

A Ear & EE R AR B BEN 2 M 5T — 5

A

=,

FEERON2023F 6 A 23 Bt EGA TSR

23 June 2023 and were signed on its behalf:

Masaru Okutomi

BER
Director

EF

RIRKREEZREE

Tou Kit Vai
AR

Director

EF

BERGEBERERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive income,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners:

Share-based compensation

Dividend paid to equity holders

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

Total transactions with owners
Balance at 31 March 2022
Balance at 1 April 2022

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive income,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners:
Repurchase and cancellation of shares
Share-based compensation

Dividend paid to equity holders

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 March 2023

R2021F4 1B 2 &8

2HWEA:
FE R

H2EMA
hEBEEE

Eb2EBALE  NEHE

2ARAEE
BEAARS !
B AERZME
FES A AR
AR I R

=]
o

R
BREEARSAE

202253 31 B2 &t
R2022F 4518 258

2EYA:
FREA

H2ERA
NEHEZR

Hib2EBALE  NBEHE

PHUARE
BEAARS

B8 s s D

PAR fp AT 2 Bl
MERSA AR S
BERARZAE

R2023F3 831 Bz &tk

HZE2023F3A831HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREHAARGES
Share Share
capital premium Reserves Sub-total
R R4 EE e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
(Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 17)
(FiizE16) (Ftzx16) (KtzE17)
141 1,303,246 2,033,264 3,337,921
- - 572,677 572,677
- - 114,761 114,761
- - 114,761 114,761
- - 687,438 087,438
= = 585 585
- - (606,819) (606,819)
- - (606,234) (606,234)
141 1,303,246 2,114,468 3,419,125
1,411 1,303,246 2,114,468 3,419,125
- - 268,572 268,572
- - (196,927) (196,927)
- - (196,927) (196,927)
- - 71,645 71,645
(3) (7,366) - (7,369)
- - 310 310
- - (408,847) (408,847)
3) (7,366) (408,537) (415,906)
1,408 1,295,880 1,777,576 3,074,864

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

Non-
controlling
interests
F
ER
HK$'000
BT

15,704

6,558

5,077
(2,763)

(2,763)

2,314

13,713

Total

ag
HK$'000
AT

3,353,625
579,235
116,398

116,398

695,633

585
(606,819)
(12,500)

(618,734)
3,430,524

3,430,524
273,649
(199,690)

(199,690)

73,959

(7,369)
310
(408,847)

(415,906)

3,088,577
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

PRC and overseas tax paid

PRC tax refunded

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Placement of short-term bank deposits

Release of short-term bank deposits

Interest income received

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid to equity holders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Repurchase of shares

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Currency translation differences

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.
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2023
2023
HK$’000
FE T

886,300
(49,948)
(15,962)
(44,272)

776,118

(503,228)

6,415
13,748

40,680

(160,383)

18,649

(584,119)

(684,692)
548,452

(3,018)

(408,847)

(7,369)

(555,474)

(363,475)

1,545,128
5,457

1,187,110

2022
2022
HK$'000
T T

635,380
(6,651)
(44,921)
(21,945)
16,190

578,053

(161,562)

1,845
22,707

(44,018)

11,323
4,876

426

(164,403)

(537,767)
1,336,981
(8,811)
(606,819)
(12,500)

171,084

584,734

946,152
14,242

1,545,128
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile
products with production base located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments which were

measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Amendments to standards to existing standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for the
reporting period commencing 1 April 2022:

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 (amendments)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope amendments
(amendments)

HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 2021
(amendments)

AG 5 (revised) Revised Accounting Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

All amendments to standards listed above do not have significant effect
on the Group's accounting policies.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’'d)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but

are not effective

The following new and amended standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2022 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 April 2023
Statement 2 (amendments)
HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 April 2023
(amendments)
HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and 1 April 2023
liabilities arising from a single
transaction (amendments)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (new standard) 1 April 2023
HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 April 2023
HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 1 April 2023
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 April 2024
or Non-current (amendments)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 April 2024
(amendments)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 April 2024
(amendments)
HK Int 5 (Revised) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) 1 April 2024

Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by

the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

To be confirmed
by the HKICPA

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
(amendments)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

None of the above new standards and amendments to standards
is expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)

(b)

()

Business combinations (Contd)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
balance sheet and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEEHIESHHREME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Associates 23HE AT

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss after the date of acquisition and the investor’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying

amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
investments in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information
of associates has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

The Group's interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BENTREASEHEEERFE
NimEEHE TEER  BEMTE
B20% E50% 1% R 2 R o REEE
DA A S ETAEALR -

RIBHETE  WE R AKAFER -
REER TR - URERA Ba R
RRERFNWIE R RREIEMIRE
NElZ B LRERA 2R R R
BREFREARERB ZEMEEE
AN o O S B U & A R IR B A
MR EREEN T AER -

EAREEDIEBERRNEBERENHK
BHREERRNRE (BFEERE
BB EWHR) - RIFAKEE
EERREETEMS  HARBBED
AR BRAITEE—SHERBER -

RSB E B S N RETT E TR
Y5 HEE  AREESNU R
R HEAEREREENHE AT
MEDHD BRIEXZBEBEBRTE
REECKRE BRIREHRERS
WEH - C B E R AWM IS ERHE
HUERS  EREAEERRNE
AHRFEBRE B

REBRBE AR ZEABENKE
FEp<AeE ERE—HEERR
ZFrE Rl BEXAEAREE
FAEZBMERARABHEENBELZ
AR ERBZEMERARIIER

o

I

AEBESEREAHECRTER
BERFEARERATREDREE -1
RECRE AKEFERE  #R
AL RE A D 2R A RE(E
ZER TESEBEERTEBID
i — B SRR s | FER B B
2 o

EXGEBZERBRAT | 2022/2023 £

71



72

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates (Cont'd)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence

is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate. Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for

impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 2.7.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive

directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

b)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “finance income” or “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “other income and other gains — net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances (Contd)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, are included in

other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

=

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign

entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets other than construction in progress are
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs (less
estimated residual values, if any) over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rates, as follows:

Buildings 4%-5%
10%-20%
20%-33% or shorter of the lease terms

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

20%-33%
20%-25%
Computer software 10%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

Depreciation is not provided for construction in progress until the asset is
completed and available for use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITETSHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 2.6 ¥ BERKRE (B

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
the carrying amount are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each balance sheet date.

2.8 Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and recognised in ‘other income and gains — net’ Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 GHREEHEIFIBSHREME (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(iii) Measurement (Contd)

28 EREE ()
(iij) 512 (&)

Debt instruments (Contd)

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within “other income
and gains — net”in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in the “finance income”.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as “other income and other gains —
net”when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in “other income and other gains — net”in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at fair
value through OCl are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost using historical and forward looking data.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and amounts due from associates, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. See Note 3.1(b) for further details.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9

2.10

2.12

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of each balance sheet date. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. See Note 2.8(iv) for a description of
the Group's impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

When any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or
reissued.

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade, bills and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Borrowings (Cont'd)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

27 RIEE TSR ()

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

b)

(c)

@)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the balance sheet date and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit
scheme under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state or
trustee-administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(e) Termination benefits

218EERF (F)
(e) BEBLIETF

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
balance sheet date are discounted to their present value.

(f) Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(f)  Share-based compensation (Contd)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Contd)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent equity accounts.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20 Revenue and income recognition

(a)

(b)

(©

(@)

Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
textile products. Revenue are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location and the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customers.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised based on the price specified
for each order.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group recognised
its down payments from customers under other payables and accruals
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Sub-contracting income
The Group provides ad-hoc sub-contracting service to customers. Sub-

contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Handling income
The Group provides handling service for purchases of raw materials on
behalf. Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease periods.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
effective interest method is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross

carrying amount of a financial asset.

2.22 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

2.23 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit attributable to equity holders of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares.

By the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Dilutive earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination

of basic earnings per share taking into account:

The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HGEEEHEFESHEEME (F)
POLICIES (Cont’'d)
2.24 Leases 247 E

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable (if any);

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.24 Leases (Cont'd)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received (if any); and

any initial direct costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value

assets comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
31(b)). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expenses
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group has
complied with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

As at 31 March 2023, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to US Dollars (“USS$"), Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs
("VND"). The Group manages its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The
Group hedges certain of its exposure to reduce the risk involved as
appropriate (2022: same).

As HKS is pegged to USS, management believes that the exchange
rate risk for translations between HK$ and USS$ do not have material
impact to the Group.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and
Vietnam. Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-
company receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions
are mainly conducted in the functional currency of the respective
group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities is considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to economically hedge
part of its foreign exchange risk. These forward currency contracts do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Market risk (Contd)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Contd)

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the respectively exchange
rates against the functional currency of the respective group entities,
with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the year ended
31 March 2023, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange impact on
translation of financial assets and liabilities denominated in these

foreign currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Contd)
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2023, except for derivative financial instruments, bank
deposits, lease liabilities and bank loans, details of which are disclosed
in Note 14, Note 15, Note 7 and Note 18 respectively, the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities and (2022:
except for unlisted financial product, bank deposits, lease liabilities
and bank loans, details of which are disclosed in Note 14, Note 15,
Note 7 and Note 18 respectively, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities).

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

If the market interest rates for cash and bank balance and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 would have been approximately HK$136,000
lower/higher (2022: HK$457,000 lower/higher).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk
As at 31 March 2023, the Group's credit risk arises from trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from associates,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, short-term deposits and
cash and bank balances (2022: same).

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

(i) Risk management
Substantially all of the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note 15,
are held in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Macau and Vietnam. with high credit rating.

(i) Impairment of cash and bank deposits

Cash and bank deposits are also subject to impairment requirement of
HKFRS 9. Management is of the view that the Group’s cash and bank
deposits are placed in those banks which are independently rated
with a high credit rating. Management does not expect any material
losses from non-performance by these banks as they have no default
history in the past. Thus, the loss allowance provision recognised for
cash and bank deposits is close to zero as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Trade and bills receivables

()

(i)

Risk management

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from its customers
individually due to the concentration of credit risk. Management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by
management.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates different loss
patterns in different geographical region, the calculation of expected
credit losses on trade and bill receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
the debtors’ credit history and the ageing profile in different
geographical region. Subsequently, the expected credit losses on
trade and bills receivables are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

The Group identified the Gross Domestic Products (“GDP") of the
countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)

Trade and bills receivables (Contd)

(i) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (Contd)
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance for trade and bills
receivables was determined as follows. The expected credit losses
below also incorporated forward looking information.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

B B E ()
3.1 BB EREE (F)
(b) B Rz (%)

JENG BR 3 R 15 (48 )

(ii) JEEH B 3 % ZZ 1 el 18 (48)
20234 K 202253 A31H
Bt UK BR BN K B R R MR AT 4R
MESBREETINT - T&RA
EHEEBECMARES
e

31 March 2023 20233 A31A
Trade and bills receivables -  EWRA N ZE B

Gross (HK$'000) (F#&T) 805,685
Weighted average expected I T8 HBE B & (%)
loss rate (%) 0.02%

Loss allowance (HK$'000) EiERE (TET) 126

5,448 1,308 829,001
5.49% 49.39% 0.16%
299 646 1,308

20223 A31H

31 March 2022

Trade and bills receivables -
Gross (HKS$'000)

Weighted average expected
loss rate (%)

Loss allowance (HK$'000)

EUWETR g - 258
(F&T) 878,740
DT 538 AR R (%)

0.02%
BERE(THET) 157

50,164 14,772 3,520 947,196
0.21% 1.36% 32.39% 0.17%
107 201 1,140 1,605

Impairment losses on trade and bills receivables is presented as
provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

The loss allowances for trade and bills receivables as at 31 March 2023
reconcile to the opening loss allowances are presented in Note 12
(2022: same).
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Derivative financial instruments and unlisted financial product classified
as FVPL

(i)

(i)

Risk management

The Group had investments in derivative financial instruments —
foreign currency forward contracts and unlisted financial product (the
“investments”). The Group monitors the credit risks of its investments
through evaluation of financial data provided by the investees.

Credit risk of derivative financial instruments and unlisted financial
product

The derivative financial instruments — foreign currency forward
contracts were entered into with banks with sound credit ratings and
the Group did not consider there was material exposure to credit risks.
As at 31 March 2023, the maximum exposure of derivative financial
instruments was HK$276,000 (2022: The unlisted financial product
were entered into with banks with sound credit ratings and the Group
did not consider there was material exposure to credit risks. As at 31
March 2022, the maximum exposure of the unlisted financial product
was HK$44,018,000).

Other financial assets at amortised cost

(i)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Risk management

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of the assets and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition. The following indicators
are considered:

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the company’s ability to meet its obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BKERBRERE (H)
3 M EBEE (&)
b) 1EEE R (&)
1ZEE 5K A S BR B B % it B

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Contd)

(#)
(i) Risk management (Contd) () R EE (&)
- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of - RRIKEFEEMNERNE

the company;

significant changes in the expected performance and behavior
of the company, including changes in the payment status of the
third party.

(i) Impairment of other financial assets at amortised costs

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group categories a receivable for
write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded greater than 365 days past due. Where the receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include certain deposits and
other receivables. These financial assets are considered to be low
credit risk primarily because they had no history of default and the
counterparties had a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit losses for these receivables are immaterial under 12
months expected losses method. Thus, the loss allowance provision
recognised for these balances is close to zero as at 31 March 2023
(2022: same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of funding through adequate committed credit
facilities. The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions and
upgrades to property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital
injections into subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating
expenses and unexpected cash outflow due to the COVID-19 pandemic
or other unforeseen crisis. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through funds generated from its operations, bank loans

and other borrowings.

The Group’'s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and has available funding through adequate amount of

committed credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2023

Bank loans

Loan from a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Trade and bills payables

Lease liabilities

Accruals and other payables

28

RITEMK

— el 8 % ) FE 4 ) 14
REEHER
ENERERE
HEAE
FEFHIE B R E AR R

IR

On
demand
RER
HK$'000
FERT

1,320,277

1,320,277

3

BEEREE (F)
3 B EBEE (&)
(c) FEIEEE

REZRBMRRERESHFTT
BErzHReWBBARREZEERE
EREL AKBEZHEESFRE
DARAENRETDE  BEK
B LHEE WEBAREE
L I RBERREERT MU
AR 2019BMRBmE R HE AT
TER 7 E#3BERZ IR S
Ml e AEBBREEELACE
© - RITE R R H A8 FRAR AT
BEESR R -

AEBZBRAERERRER
BHRBE S ENRK  {EMERA
SEERRZASRASEER
BRBBARRZEEEERRTE
T UAREREEEET R

TRARBEIBAER I RAE
ERGaEEREE08HA
ZRGHEzMBEEBRZD
e MRPBEBEZEEA/ANM
AFERERE -

A2023%F3 A31H

Within Over
1 year 1 year Total
1FR 1FE0E Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
- - 1,320,277
- 126,576 126,576
629,088 - 629,088
26,930 7,522 34,452
105,761 - 105,761
761,779 134,098 2,216,154



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liguidity risk (Contd)
As at 31 March 2022

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

KRR EE (H)

31 I EBEE (F)
JEEIEE SR (4B
BK2022F3H31H

Bank loans RITER 1,453,683 - - 1,453,683
Loan from a non-controlling — BB 2 B FE 5 il 14

interest of a subsidiary =R ER = = 126,218 126,218

Trade and bills payables ERERREE = 592,691 = 592,691

Lease liabilities HEAE - 28,004 15918 43,922

Accruals and other payables FERTIE B R H fh g
I - 37,330 - 37,330
1,453,683 658,025 142,136 2,253,844

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of the Group’s bank
loans with repayable on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included
interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand”
time band in the maturity analysis contained above.

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretions to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment date as set out in
the loan agreements.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 BBEBEE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3 MBAREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd) (c) 7Bt ER (&)
Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayable on demand ST —REBERE B RFHEK
clause based on scheduled repayments (including related interest BEREREEBEKRZBITEE
payable): (BEEEEMTE)

31 March 2023 202343 A31H - 887,284 291,659 193,755 - 1,372,698
31 March 2022 20223 A31H = 530,674 223,589 742,541 = 1,496,804
The table below analyses the Group’s unlisted financial product and TR AREED ARG RSB
derivative financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into HHZEEHIHA ZFISRBAREZIAE
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance HAELE VIEFTEMEMRITE
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table SRMIEZHT -REFBEBE 8
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. REHNUERTERERE ©

At 31 March 2023: R2023F3H31H :
Foreign currency forward SNEEIRERE 4D ¢

contracts:
Inflow mA - 276 - - 276
Outflow Pias - (77) - = (77)
At 31 March 2022: 7202263 A318:
Unlisted financial product: ~ JEET & BEM :
Inflow mA - - 44,018 - 44,018
Outflow it = = = - -

100 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022/2023 Annual Report



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBRERMT ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 BKERBRERE (H)
32ESERER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, draw down or
repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
total capital. Total debt includes borrowings and bills payables as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of “equity” as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

AEEZESERBRARELAKE
RREELE URARRREHE®R F
BREEMRERAA NG  L#
FREZBERNEBIUREE KA
BRTEBIABRELRGEE  AKEA
EERRARRENZRESE W
BRBEEESD  BITHR  RIEE
BIE -

HBHEMRARAER  AREREAXEE
HRERER - P RIZREHK AR
BRABABEE -EBEERRER
REERBRMIIZEERENRE
NEERBBERGEEEREBERMT
ZI#Es] - BARBLENT

Borrowings EE 1,446,853 1,579,901
Bills payables R AR 3,285 17,663
Total debt [P FCE 1,450,138 1,597,564
Total capital [N 3,088,577 3,430,524
Gearing ratio BEXRBFEEE 47.0% 46.6%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income carries at fair value while the carrying amounts of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, trade and
bills receivables, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from associates,
trade and bills payables, accrual and other payables (excluding employees
benefits related payable, provisions and other taxes payable), lease liabilities
and borrowings approximate their fair values due to their short maturities
and/or bear interest rate at market. The nominal values less estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one
year are assumed to approximate their fair values (2022: same).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value
as at 31 March 2023 and 2022, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 MHEBRER(#E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 AR EME (&)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TR TAEBENR2023F3A31 8
measured at fair value at 31 March 2023. BRARBIEZEERAE-

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through R BT AE M2 E WA
other comprehensive income MerEE M:E10)
(Note 10)
- Club debentures -BH#ES 427 - = 427
Financial assets at fair value through R EF ABZMAE &
profit or loss (Note 14) EE (s 14)
- Derivative financial instruments —fTELB T RRBINE
Foreign currency forward af
contracts - 276 - 276

427 276 - 703

Liabilities &
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBETAEZNERH
through profit or loss (Note 14) B fE (P 14)
- Derivative financial instruments —TESBMIERIMNE
Foreign currency forward =
contracts - 77 - 77
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2022.

FEMBRRNE (F)

HERKREE (E)

3.3 A RE M (F)
TRINRAEERK202F3H31H
BAREHECEERAGE-

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through & A LB A E b 2 EAA
other comprehensive income HerEE M:E10)
(Note 10)
- Club debentures -BH#ES 427 = = 427
Financial assets at fair value through  E R EF ABZMAE &
profit or loss (Note 14) EE (s 14)
— Unlisted financial product —LETEBER - - 44,018 44,018
427 - 44018 44,445

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2023
(2022: same).

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MEERER(H)
3.3 A AEME (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, specific valuation techniques used by the
Group to value level 1 and 2 financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

The level 3 instrument represented the unlisted financial product classified
as FVPL. Management is of the view that the investment is made on 31 March
2022, the balance sheet date, for which the fair value approximates its carrying
amount therefore no special valuation techniques were used in determining
the fair value of the unlisted financial product.

REEERMSEENESRTA(H
WSIMTET R) MR ERBHE
RIMESE - (A ERMEEN A EER
mEHE(WE) BEDKETE
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B RZEeMIAIASE2E -

W—IE L % IR E K A FER AR AT #R
EMEHE - ZERTAIARS
o

MR2023F K 2022F3H31H A&
EARFEEIERE2ESRMTA
RARMERMEE

FMEA TANTBRERZHE
R -

EHINESHMDREBENREE
FREHEXEE  MAKEE
HEHRE-

FEIBTIEESBEAKRANBEAR
HRFELTERER EEERA
ZIWETIR2022F3 831 B (BEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of interests in associates
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as the quoted market value of listed associate having fallen below
its carrying amount or significant adverse changes in the market environment,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 on the associates and the countries in which they operate.

In determining the recoverable amounts of interests in associates,
management considered the higher of the value in use and fair value less
cost to disposal. In determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a)
its share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by the associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to
be received and proceeds on disposal. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
statement of profit or loss. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down
the interests in associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

(c)

(d

-

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement
is required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of
these matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the
provisions made and the earnings stated in the statement of profit or loss.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax losses,
depends on the expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different. Management has performed an assessment on the
recoverability of these deferred tax assets and consider that the realisation of
these tax losses probable and no impairment provision is required as at year
end.

Provision for impairment of trade and bills and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3.1(b)). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward — looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(e) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

(f)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group and the countries in
which it operates. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to disposal.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the assets in the
business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker ("CODM") has been identified as the executive

directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group’s internal reporting

in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and

trading of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive

directors review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers

operations conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam.

The executive directors review resources allocation and assess performance of the

Group on a regular basis based on the following financial information:

Revenue - sales of goods
(recognised at a point in time) (Note (iii))

Gross profit
Gross profit margin (%)

Operating expenses
Operating expenses/Revenue (%)

EBITDA (Note (ii)
EBITDA/Revenue (%)

Finance income

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation (included in cost of
sales and operating expenses)

Share of profits of associates

Income tax expense

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Net profit margin (%)

Total assets

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Cash and bank balances

Borrowings

Inventories
Inventory turnover days (Note (iv))

Trade and bills receivables
Trade and bills receivables turnover days (Note (v))

Trade and bills payables
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (iv))

5
WA-SEEER (RETHHER)
(B 2 i)
ES
EH = (%)
KRR

ERI A (%)

FIB - BUE - I E R A ) (PR )
ME - HE - FERBHEIEN, WA %)
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IR
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HERBRENE (F)

SEE R
HREEREE (AREEREEE

WERAAAANTES RENLE
ErAHB2R  AFHEBRLHEEE -

HRASEMARBYEEEREREA
FREUKEBEFENSBRER 178
ERBE—DM(BEREE R - F
IE@tF‘?E’\JMﬂ% BT Z XS ) FH
AEBEZRBR - BITEEHERATH
BER  TEHEHNAEENERD LR
EITRIE

HERBEGIARENAREEHRX)

DIEBE R A)E M
FrEHR <

ZANCIE: RS 2N il
AL 7 2= (%)

BEMAE
ARRIHED B ARGRES
R e BRI

f&&

P

BE
FEBEAH(HE )

R M R 1B
FBEREFEFEBEE RS (MEW)

AR N RIE
EREREFEEEE B S (MHEw)

2023 2022
2023 2022 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
5,018,735 6,066,310
489,987 776,318
9.8% 12.8%
203,193 251,704
4.0% 4.1%
491,292 838,727
9.8% 13.8%
49,908 16,125
50,189 21,975
173,815 186,810
18,425 34,890
43,547 66,832
268,572 572,677
5.4% 9.4%
5,529,317 5,944,194
3,074,864 3,419,125
1,347,493 1,545,128
1,446,853 1,579,901
964,821 1,236,784
89 85
827,693 945,591
65 54
629,088 592,691
49 45
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i) To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in accordance with
HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures, including EBIDTA, EBITDA/Revenue,
inventories turnover days, trade and bills receivables turnover days, and trade and
bills payables turnover days have been presented in this report. The Company’s
management believes that the non-HKFRS financial measures provide investors
with clearer view on the Group's financial results, and with useful supplementary
information to assess the performance of the Group’s strategic operations.
Nevertheless, the use of these non-HKFRS financial measures has limitations as
an analytical tool. These non-HKFRS financial measures should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s financial performance
prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs,
income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(iii

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has recognised contract liabilities amounting to

HK$7,517,000 (2022: HK$5,503,000) relating to contracts with customers.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised revenue of HK$5,503,000
(2022: HKS$10,380,000) related to carried-forward contract liabilities.

(iv) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the
year and the end of the year balances over costs of sales.

(v) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the
year and the end of the year balances over revenue.

A reconciliation of EBITDA to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

HERBRENE (F)

() REANEEREEBPT RS ERR
NG AEE ETIHTEMBRSE
A At E (BEMNE BB HER
BEmaN, WA FEEEEH - E
WERF R RIpEE A B BN RN E
BRABHBERAMERNRY - AL
RIEEERE FRBMBE RS LR
Bt B AR ELEREEBM A EE Y
TR - WRHEE BB R AR
REBRBELENRE - A EAZ
SFBBHBHREERNMBAEELD
T ZAGFERRIE - LEFIFEEIHR
SHEA B ERBEERRBEEEYTE
BEERAENARRPFBEREDITHN

WM R R -

(i) RIS BRI - B8 R A N E &
AR BRA -~ BBERA - FEHE
XoEREHNFEE RN

(iii

MR2023F3A3H  AEEREFE

RAHBEE7,517,000% 7T (20224 -

5,503,000 7T) °

HZE2023F3A31BLLEE  NEERK
EEL XA EERIKE 55030008 T

(2022 %F : 10,380,000/ 7T) ©

(v) B¥8 B SR F N HAFRER 2 BEFY

BERAHEXAFTE -

(v) B R SRFNRFRERZBEFY

BERAWMAGTE -

B BIE - FTEREHEAE N EAF
B AT M A58 2 R SRR T

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

EBITDA FE - FIE - 8 REHEARF 491,292 838,727
Depreciation and amortisation e R (173,815) (186,810)
Finance income B A 49,908 16,125
Finance costs B 75 B AR (50,189) (21,975)
Profit before income tax FT 15 B4 B 42 A1) 317,196 646,067

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZEMER(H)
The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by REENBAEERFEE - Bk m (A
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were EmXTz B8 a%E) 8o 2 AN D
delivered, is as follows: T -

Vietnam Wi 2,326,189 2,584,158
PRC s 1,214,692 1,351,264
Bangladesh & AL 332,370 331,395
Hong Kong BE 203,570 296,683
Indonesia EIFE 195,452 209,366
Sri Lanka HEBE-R 194,871 278,263
Cambodia RIHE 156,759 217,262
America EM 92,656 238,466
Jordan #“Aa 90,264 88,840
Africa FEM 76,020 85,532
Haiti b 64,940 284,447
India ENfE 41,007 53,856
Other Asian countries H i MBER 29,567 46,448
Others non-Asian countries HuhIETMEIR 378 330
5,018,735 6,066,310
For the year ended 31 March 2023, customer A and customer B accounted for HE20BF3A3BILEFE  EFAR
approximately 47% (2022: 36%) and 19% (2022: 16%) of the Group's revenue, BEBD MG A& B U AR 447% (2022
respectively. All other customers individually accounted for less than 5% of the B 136%) K 19% (20226 : 16%) ~ E#E
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: same). 2023 3A3BIEFE - MBEMERP
B BEHEAREERAGER 5% (2022 4F -
HE) o
The Group's non-current assets (excluding interests in associates and deferred REBZIERBDEE (TEREREE QT
income tax assets) are located in the following geographical areas: ZHREEREEFMEHEE) LN A TH

= .
= :

PRC s 1,140,670 1,259,264
Vietnam i) 811,215 476,242
Hong Kong B 8,723 10,276

1,960,608 1,745,782
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

FEMBRRNE (F)

6 M¥ BERRE

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A18

Cost A 1209319 2553452 466,426 37,200 102,348 83,787 445255
Accumulated depreciation  R3tH7E (596,891) (2017,241) (323,668) (31,797) (49679) - (3019.276)
Net hook amount KRTE 612428 536211 142758 5423 52669 83787 1433276
Yearended 31 March 2022 HZ202F3A31ALER

Opening net bookamount ~~ ENEREF(E 612428 536211 14758 5423 52,669 83,787 1433276
Additions TE 110 9901 11219 1867 683 96,277 120057
Disposals and write-off e B (128) 747 (1461) (74) = = (2410
Depreciation (Note 23) i GESE) (58892) (77118 (33,190) (22%3) (9,008) = (180461)
Transfers 2B 91 39026 2557 78 = (42782) =
Currency translation differences 4V E £ 8 38,880 16752 3441 638 - 12976 72687
Closing net bookamount ~~~ FREKEFE 593319 524005 125304 5879 44,344 150,258 143,149
At31 March 2022 R02%E3A31A

Cost A 1,249,102 2,618,384 482,182 39,929 103,031 150,258 4,642,886
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HH7E (655,783) (2,094,359) (356,858) (34,050) (58,687) - (3,199,737)
Net book amount REFE 593,319 524,025 125324 5,879 44,344 150,258 1,443,149
Yearended 31 March 2023 HZ2023F3831BILEE

Opening net bookamount ~~ EAIRE B 593,319 524,025 12532 5,879 44,344 150,258 1,443,149
Interest capitalisation ES-vNg - - - - - 1,967 1,967
Additions TE - 17,958 14,302 11,796 9,225 311,003 364,284
Disposals and write-off it & S 5 (529) (7,953) (868) (311) - - 9,661)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (MEn) (49,040) (72,407) (35,501) (2,361) (7,811) - (167,120)
Transfers HR - 46,528 30,395 - - (76,923) -
Currency translation differences & #E =% (35,575) (26,386) (655) (1,920 (426) (23,009) (87,971)
Closing netbookamount ~ FREAF(E 508,175 481,765 132,997 13,083 45332 363,296 1,544,648
At 31 March 2023 R203%38318

Cost A 1,212,998 2,648,531 525,356 49,494 111,830 363,296 4,911,505
Accumulated depreciation  Z3tHH7E (704,823) (2,166,766) (392,359) (36,411) (66,498) = (3,366,857)
Net hook amount KEFE 508,175 481,765 132,997 13,083 4533 363,296 1,544,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 6 Mx- BERRE(E)
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is R BRaRABRZTERZ ST
analysed as follows: ™

Cost of sales HE KA 152,319 161,783
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 14,801 18,678
167,120 180,461
7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7 KAREERMEESE
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (a) REFEEERBRERZERS
Right-of-use assets EHEEE

Year ended 31 March 2022 HE2002F3A31BILEFEE

Opening net book amount FOETFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217

Additions NE 2,079 - = = 2,079
Depreciation (Note 23) W& (HaE23) (799) 42) (3,583) (1,925) (6,349)

Exchange differences hEZSE - - 4318) 557 3,761)

Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,635 1,050 108,101 81,400 192,186

At 31 March 2022 M202243A31H

Cost B AR 4117 2,787 150,638 83,885 241,427
Accumulated depreciation REHE (2,482) (1,737) (42,537) (2,485) (49,241)

Net book amount RmEFE 1,635 1,050 108,101 81,400 192,186 “
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (Cont'd)
Right-of-use assets (Contd)

FRMBRRNE (B

7 EREEERERESE (H)

5)

(a RGEEERBRERZEK (B
RERAEEE (&)

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE2023F3831BIEEE

Opening net book amount FMETmFE 1,635 1,050 108,101 81,400 192,186
Depreciation (Note 23) & (M5E23) (828) (42) (3,364) (2,461) (6,695)
Exchange differences hEES - - (4,638) (2,048) (6,686)
Closing net book amount FRETFE 807 1,008 100,099 76,891 178,805

At 31 March 2023 M 2023F3 831 H

Cost B AR 4,117 2,787 150,638 81,609 239,151

Accumulated depreciation 2FE (3,310) (1,779) (50,539) (4,718) (60,346)
Net book amount REFE 807 1,008 100,099 76,891 178,805

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current portion ENE 25,808 27,141
Non-current portion ERBE S 7,502 7,974
33,310 35,115

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

(c)

EREEENE
HHHEREERX
FEHEREZANE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Expenses relating to short-term leases
Unwinding of interests on lease liabilities

=
1A

A

E|/

B RRME (F)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

7 ERAREERMEESE (E)
(b) REFENBRERAZEH

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
6,695 6,349
1,294 1,178
1,626 1,565

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$4,312,000 (2022: HK$9,989,000).

Depreciation of HK$5,867,000 (2022: HKS$5,550,000) has been charged in ‘cost
of sales”and HK$828,000 (2022: HK$799,000) in ‘general and administrative
expenses’ respectively during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases land under land use right arrangements in the PRC and
Vietnam and owns leasehold land in Hong Kong.

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount for land use rights in Vietnam
amounted to HK$76,891,000, which the Group is still in the process of
applying for the formal legal title (2022: HK$81,400,000). As at 31 March 2023,
the outstanding lease liabilities in respect of such land use rights amounted to
HK$27,061,000 (2022: HK$26,021,000).

REBZE2023F3A3BIEFEABHEE
2R &R B AL 54,312,000 7T (2022
£ 19,989,000/ 7T) °

REZE2023F3A3MBLEFED RN
[SEEXARIR[—REITHREZ MR
E 5,867,000/ 7T (20224 : 5,550,000 /&
JC) % 828,000 7T (2022 4 : 799,000 7%
JT) °

() ZEE2HEETHREARS X

EXRGHBERBRAT |

ZRER B B N R AR AR L A0 P
RHERLTHARRESHEREL
M

AEERAETHAEYE -HES
H—MRER2E3IF °

AEGREBRERS  ERREESE
R B 1 2 AR R
HREAETTREERZERS -

M2023F3A31H BE L ER
#EHY BR T {5 5 76,891,000 7 7T+ 1 AN
B )7L 8 75 I B 0K TE B 4 (2022
£ : 81,400,000 7T) ° 20233 A
3H - BT ERAENRSEMR
S8 (& /427,061,000 7T (2022 4F :
26,021,000 7T ) ©

2022 /2023 FiR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

8 [ME~AA
TRIRK2023F R2022F3 83182
FTEHBERA

8 SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Shares held directly by the Company:

FAREERERG

Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%
company 18T

AERAES ERALAA

Investment holding

Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKS1 100% 100%

company 18T

Investment holding

ABRUES ERAMEAT

Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 1%L
RERURE EREMLA REER
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 18T
RERUES EREERA REER
Fast Right Group Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
company
FAEEER AR RERAEE ERAALA 1000%7T REER
Gain Trillion Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
R AREAMLAR 10,0007 7T RARK
Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Y 100% 100%  Investment holding
company
ABRARE EREEAT (E REER
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
ARRBERERG
Fast Right Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
FAKE(FE)FRAR FE BREART 10,0007 7T REER
Pacific Textiles Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ HK$103,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading of
textile products in Hong Kong
EAGBERRA 8 BRAMLA 103,000,000 7 REBRTREERRGBRES

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

2022 /2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Cont'd)

ARAEERERS : (H)

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

ERNEHBEEBRAT

Trillion Trading Macao Limited
ka8 5 R ARAT

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited (Note (a))
ER(ER) HBALARAR (M @)

Pacific GT Limited

PCGT Limited

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited (PCTL")
(Note (b))

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ([PCTL)
(3E (o))

South Shining Limited

HEARAF

Wonder Lucky Star Trading Limited

Joyful Wonder Limited

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information
Technology Limited (Note (c))

EMNEEEAMBARAR (HEQ)

Top Textiles Limited (Note (d))

Top Textiles Limited (Ff & (d))

Hong Kong, limited liability company HKST
BB BREAAT 1T
Macau, limited liability company MOP1,000,000
B BREEAR 1,000,000 895

PRC, wholly foreign owned limited US$134,804,000

liability company

ENEBEEREELR  134804000E T
British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$19,025,000
company
RERURE EREARA 19,025,000 7T
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$3,900,000
B BREMAR 39000007
Vietnam, limited liability company US$55,500,000
B BREELR 55,500,000% 7
British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1
company
RERAES ERAAAR (B
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000
B BREELR 10,000 7T
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000
& BREEAR 10,0007

PRC, wholly foreign owned limited
liability company

RMB10,000,000

PEHEBERRARLA AR%

10,000,000 7
Vietnam, limited liability company US$49,000,000
B AREELH 49000000 %70

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

8

100%

100%

100%

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

HE o (4

100%

100%

100%

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

100%

EAHBERERAT |

Investment holding
REER
Trading of textile products in Macau

RAMETHERES

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in the PRC
ReEETHERHERES

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding and trading of
textile products in Hong Kong

REBETRABRRGBRES

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHERRERES

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Provision for information technology
service in PRC

R B REA R R

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHERRERES

2022 /2023 3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(a)

5

(d)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited is a wholly foreign owned limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC with registered capital of US$134,804,000 to
be operated from July 1997 to July 2047. As at 31 March 2023, the Group has
fully paid up the registered capital to this subsidiary.

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Vietnam with registered capital of US$55,500,000 to be operated from April
2011 to January 2054. As at 31 March 2023, the Group has fully paid up the
registered capital to this subsidiary.

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information Technology Limited is a wholly foreign
owned limited liability company incorporated in PRC with registered capital
of RMB20,000,000 to be operated from May 2016 to May 2046. As at 31 March
2023, the Group is yet to pay up registered capital of RMB10,000,000 to this
subsidiary.

Top Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Vietnam
with registered capital of US$49,000,000 to be operated from December
2019 to December 2065. As at 31 March 2023, the Group has fully paid up the
registered capital to this subsidiary.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt security at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

2022 /2023 Annual Report

HERBRENE (F)

8 MEQA (F)

(a)

c

BER(ER)GBENZEER G A —
RRFEFAMK I INEBEBRE
FR7A] - HiFMME A A 134,804,000 3%
JC  B1997F 7 BB EER 2047 F
7H < 2023F3A318 - AKEE
BRZMBARZEMER -

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited & — &
REEaEfiz s BRETAR  E
FE & AN 55,500,000 € 7T ¢ 7 2011
FA4ARBEER2054F 18- R
2023F3 A3 H - AEBDHEZW
BRRAZFMER -

EBMNEEEMBEBERARA—RR
FREMKZZINEBEBRETR
A AFMERAR AR 20,000,000
JC * 2016 5 AR EEE 2046 F
5AR2023F3A318  AEEH
RN ZHB AR ZEMERARKE
10,000,000 TT °

(d) Top Textiles Limited & — R 7 i 7 7

ML Zz2BERETAR  HFfME
7K £ 49,000,000 E T * H20194F 12 A
F A& B £ 2065F 12 A ° 12023 F
3A3A AKEEEHRHHEB AR
ZEMER -

RERSEF AR - 8RR
BRITEMNETES



8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(f) Material non-controlling interests
The total non-controlling interest as at 31 March 2023 is HK$13,713,000 (2022:
HK$11,399,000), mainly comprised the Group's investment in Vietnam through
Pacific GT Limited, PCGT Limited and PCTL. The non-controlling interests in
respect of South Shining Limited are not material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

Pacific GT Limited

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Summarised balance sheet EEEFERME
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,925 2,925
Current assets MEEE 168,425 176,807
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - =
Current liabilities mEEE 2,137 2,121
Net assets BEFE 169,213 177,611
Summarised statementof BHEXRME
profit or loss
Revenue WA - =
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR)/HH (8,398) (810)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZHEER
for the year = -
Total comprehensive (loss)/ ~ EE2H (B1E), /WA
income for the year ek (8,398) (810)
(Loss)/profit attributable to D EEIFIEHIEEZ 2
non-controlling interests (&), &5 Fl (420) (41)
Dividends paid to non- fr) I 61 44
controlling interests AT AR S - =

Summarised cash flows HEREWME
Net cash (used in)/generated & i& /&%) (FTA )/ FiB

from operating activities 2R (7,183) (9,228)
Net cash generated from/ BREEBME/(FTA)

(used in) investing activities 3R & /F %8 - -
Net cash generated from/ BREEBME/(FTA)

(used in) financing activities 33 % /F %8 - =
Net (decrease)/increase in BekHeEMEER

cash and cash equivalents (RD) /B mnFEeE (7,183) (9,228)

8 MEAR(H)
() ERFEESIEER

202353 A31H Z FE1E 4 MRS
48 %A /513,713,000 7T (2022 4 -
11,399,000/870) ' B BREAEEE
i Pacific GT Limited * PCGT Limited &
PCTLA B REITHIRE - HEARA
BRI FEIE SR B IEE R ©

HHERIEIED 1 18 7.2 B
T #HINEA LA KBNS BEAW
SRR 2 SMB AR 2B E
FIEE -

PCGT Limited PCTL

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 F 20224 2023 F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEL FER FHT
437,755 380,754 281,760 283,685
290,429 276,413 243,434 172,064
126,576 126,218 29,637 37,957
573,076 518,924 76,561 50,061
28,532 12,025 418,996 367,731
1,191,843 1,182,031 667,757 663,655
17,160 8,096 1,960 15,422
= = (9,612) (3,359)
17,160 8,906 (7,652) 12,063
4,934 2,328 563 4271

= (12,500) = =
82,681 (48,517) 4,009 39,547
= = (40,299) (38,757)
(58,243) 78,020 31,447 (450)
24,438 29,503 (4,843) 340
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8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(f) Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd)
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

As at 31 March 2023, cash and bank deposits of HK$5,180,000 (2022:
HK$10,171,000) of PCTL are held in Vietnam and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

FEMBRRNE (F)

8 MELA (&)
() BARIFES M (F)

FEHRAREEHASE -

M20234F3 8310 - PCTLA M #
R e KR ITHF 5£5,180,000% 7T
(20224 : 101710008 7T) - BAS
75 INEE IR E RRR o 2 S
HINE B I AR TE S 18 B A OB B AR
PR I - 13 4R X R AR B B ) RIUBR S o

9 REEAT ZEEREWEEQAKE

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd.

ETER(EM) TEHBER

(“SPM Automotive”) BRAB(TEIEKR]D 41,123 48,017
Teejay Lanka PLC (“PT Sri Lanka”) Teejay Lanka PLC([PTHTE R K J) 274,746 311,351
315,869 359,368

Movements in share of net assets of associates are as follows:

HMERREEFEZEPNT

At 1 April ®4A18 359,368 347,077
Dividends % 2 (13,748) (22,707)
Share of profits DA v F 18,425 34,890
Currency translation differences INEE A = R (1,567) 108
Impairment of interest in an associate H—REE A ARMNER 2B (46,609) =
At 31 March #3831 8 315,869 359,368

120 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022/2023 Annual Report
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 9 REEQATAZERZREWRHE ATRIE

(Cont'd) (%)
The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2023 and 2022, which were held 2023 F K 2022F3 A31 B 2B E QA
indirectly by the Company, are as follows: (BAARIMEERE) 2HBEET :

SPM Automotive PRC, limited liability company US$7,500,000 33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading of
vehicles related textile products in
the PRC

FIEX FE - BREEAF 7,500,000 7T R BETIERENRREER
25

Teejay Lanka PLC Sri Lanka, limited liability RS2,749,266,000 28% 28%  Manufacturing and trading of textile

company products in Sri Lanka

PTEREMR HEFF FREEAR 2,749,266,000 REERRETHRMEERES

HERHREL

SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted market FIERE—MBHBEELETAF Bt

price available for its shares. HRm I e AmismE -

At 31 March 2023, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka, M2023F3A31H  AEBERPTHE

which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was approximately BR(—HATNEFEREGEESFSH

HK$ 154,144,000 (2022: HK$311,986,000). rETHRE) MERMBETELOR

154,144,000 7 7T (2022 F : 311,986,000 75
TT) °

ERHGBERBRAT | 2022/2023 F£3H 121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Cont’d)

Impairment test for the interest in PT Sri Lanka

As at 31 March 2023, an impairment test was performed due to the changes in
the business environment led by the bankruptcy of the Government in Sri Lanka.
The recoverable amount of the interest in PT Sri Lanka is determined based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations.

The recoverable amount of the interests in PT Sri Lanka was determined based
on value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
the 5-year forecast plan which reflects the plan of management in expanding
the customer base and market share. Cash flow beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated long-term growth rate. Judgement is required
to determine the key assumptions in the cash flow forecast such as revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin, terminal value rate and pre-tax discount rate and
changes to these key assumptions could affect this cashflow and therefore the
result of the impairment review.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

Average revenue growth rate FEHWRIERR
Average gross profit margin 15 F FI| =R
Terminal growth rate R 18 R R
Pre-tax discount rate FiATALIR R

As at 31 March 2023, the recoverable amount of the interests in PT Sri Lanka
was approximately HK$274,746,000, which is lower than its then carrying
amount of approximately HK$321,355,000. Consequently, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$46,609,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

2022 /2023 Annual Report

HERBRENE (F)

9 RBEQNTAZEZRERBRE QARRE

(%)

HAEPTHEM FRZERENR
F2023F 38318 BETEBRIWARK
AWE  FEEREEE  HMETT
BENS  RAEBPTHES REEZA
AEREEXARFEREEZESE
BRI PTHN R RS 2 AT E S 58 -

BPRERBEEERAFPTHER R
@AW EEEE - A ERERNRDIR
TBRIASFRRG B SEE  AIRBRE
EEBAREPEEMEERZAE - HAM
N RAERERERE S FHURNEIR
T - EERSATNMERERRK (K
SRR ENE  RELRRBAR
BR)AEHHE ZE5HRERNEE

CEHZBRERDERERTNER
ERTE -

EREEAERANBRBRRAOT

2023
2023 &

8%
11%
3%
14%

2023438318 FIBPTHER
w2 A W E £ KA # 274,746,000 78
7T R E B A BRI E 49 321,355,000 7%
T ARG EERRERREEEL
46,609,000 7 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(Cont'd)

Impairment test for the interest in PT Sri Lanka (Cont'd)

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting period to

a reasonably possible change in the respectively key assumptions ratio:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

R & QR 2R E WSS N RRE
(%)
HAEFPTHER SRS ERERNR (&)
TEREERREHRYSMRBEBRLE
BEMA e EE) s BIRRIZE ¢

2023

Average revenue growth rate
Average gross profit margin
Terminal growth rate

Pre-tax discount rate

2023 F

T Ug a5 R R
FHEF X
Bimi R xR
AR IR =

Summarised financial information for associates

+1%/-1%
+1%/-1%
+1%/-1%
+1%/-1%

Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive and

PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method.

22,900 lower/higher B 1& & &
19,200 lower/higher & & 5
18,000 lower/higher &, & &
21,100 higher/lower 8 & & &

BEATNHEENRE
ATEANETERRPTH BB RAMELR
FEARNPEERBE -

Summarised balance sheet EEEEREE
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 8,386 5,745 639,546 578,111
Current assets mEEE 168,731 228,347 858,059 1,015,495
Non-current liabilities FEREBBE - = 276,749 212,493
Current liabilities MBS 53,499 88,587 449,888 644,884
Net assets BEFE 123,618 145,505 770,968 736,229
Summarised statement of BRRUE

profit or loss
Revenue LN 305,194 417,717 1,872,796 1,950,902
Profit for the year FEHEMN 15,081 25,538 47,394 98,923
Other comprehensive income FEEMEERA

for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income FE2EKRABE

for the year 15,081 25,538 47,394 98,923

EXRGEERERAT | 2022/2023 F3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

FEMBRRNE (F)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 9 REZEQATAZERZREWRHKE ATRIE
(Cont'd) (#&)
Summarised financial information for associates (Cont’d) BeE NN EERBE (&)

Pl ERNRMBERNRERARNERR
B AR ERREENHERNT

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates to

the carrying value of the Group's interests in associates is as follows:

Opening netassetsat 1 April W4 A 1BENZEEFE 145,505 138,893 736,229 694,385 881,734 833,278
Currency translation SNEBREEE
differences (13,855) 3,932 10,455 (2,744) (3,400) 1,188
Profit for the year FERM 15,081 25,538 47,394 98,923 62,475 124,461
Dividends & 2 (22,116) (22,858) (23,110 (54,335) (45,226) (77,193)
Closing net assets at 31 March ~ W3 A3 BFERZEEZFE 124,615 145,505 770,968 736,229 895,583 881,734
Net assets attributable to AEERGEEETE
the Group 41,123 48017 215,177 205,482 256,300 253,499
Goodwill B - - 109,056 108,747 109,056 108,747
Less: Unrealised gainonsale & - B2 T — Al
of machinery to RAlZKRER W=
an associate - - (2,878) (2,878) (2,878) (2,878)
Less: Impairment loss B OREESR - - (46,609) = (46,609) =
Interests in associates iNANCId 41,123 48,017 274,746 311,351 315,869 359,368
Dividends received from BUEBEDERE
associates 7,298 7,543 6,450 15,164 13,748 22,707

AR R A A GREFIIS
H YERAEBRBELT 2 RHK
HER(HBE -

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the associates.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Cont'd)

Summarised financial information for associates (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s share of contingent liability in respect of a
pending tax claim against PT Sri Lanka amounted to approximately HK$3,526,000
(2022: HK$15,153,000). The Group has no contingent liabilities relating to its
interests in associates.

Cash and bank deposits of HK$59,869,000 (2022: HK$83,620,000) which belongs
to the Group'’s associate in the PRC are held in the PRC and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

Amounts due from associates
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable
on demand and current in nature. The amounts are denominated in USS.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

HEMBRENE (B)

9 RBEQRTZEBREREBREQRARE

(##)

HEATNMBEENSE (F)
MR2023F3A31H - AEBEF —IBEPT
TEHFRREZEABRERREMLDN
A B E 4 AE3,526000/8 70 (2022 F
15,153,000 7T) - NEEBZEAN A
GENTER I KEBE -

RPEBEREBRASEBRRE e
NaEl R IR & KR 1T 17 559,869,000 % 7T
(20224 : 83,620,000/ 7T) * BZAZ T
SNEE BIRERIRIR o ZF T IMNEE
il 47 E ¥ 1B A B B AYEH BRI - ME
738 % m AR S A BR A o

FE W B & A B FRIR
RS RARRBALSEER 28 1
ERFEENBRAGME - £FAX

TTHlfE -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

10 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 10 BARE AHEMBEZEKRANEREE
INCOME

Club debentures SHEES 427 427

At 1 April w4A1H 427 853

Disposal & - (426)
At 31 March MW3A31H 427 427

The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices. SHEEHFIAABENRE-_FMHEE
See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. The club debentures are FeoRAMFAEBEAABZE—FE
denominated in HKS. Ko EBFUBTIIE -

11 INVENTORIES 11 78

Raw materials E R 658,292 619,896
Work-in-progress fE8 m 126,123 346,140
Finished goods 21K i 180,406 270,748
964,821 1,236,784
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted FRAFABERARAZFER AL
to approximately HK$3,922,144,000 (2022: HK$4,561,256,000) which included £3,922,144,0008 L (2022 4F
provision for inventories amounted to approximately HK$3,272,000 (2022: reversal 4,561,256,000 7 7T) * B 15 B = 20234 3
of provision of HK$34,905,000) for the year ended 31 March 2023. R31 BIEFEFHRFE B 493,272,000
7 7T (2022 5 ¢ @ 534,905,000 8
JT) °

N\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

12 EWERAR R EE

Trade receivables JRE 45 AR R 793,277 908,056
Bills receivables e R IE 35,724 39,140
829,001 947,196

Less: Provision for impairment of trade and W ERERER R R ERE
bills receivables (1,308) (1,605)
827,693 945,591

Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 120 days. The ageing
analysis of trade and bills receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

AEBRIEDHEEZEFEEHNTI0E
10K - BIBEHZAH  BREERAKLERE
ZHREOWWT

0-60 days 0-60K 779,714 700,960
61-120 days 61-120 K 47,546 242,233
121 days-1 year 121 K14 1,741 4,003

829,001 947,196

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

EUERERRIZATERFIE :

uss X7 643,123 793,250
RMB AR 120,150 113,978
HKS BT 65,728 39,968 “
829,001 947,1 9%
X
EXRGBERBRAT | 2022/2023 £, 127



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBRERMT ()

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 12 EWERA R EE (#])

The top two customers accounted for approximately 39% (2022: 25%) and 25%
(2022: 36%), respectively, of the Group's trade and bills receivables; all other
customers individually accounted for less than 8% of the Group's trade and bills
receivables as at 31 March 2023 (2022: 6%).

The book carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their fair
values.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and bills
receivables. Note 3.1 provides for details about the calculation of the allowance
and the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk.

Movements in the Group'’s provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables
are as follows:

B AEP DR 46 2N & B e U AR 3K
N2 39% (2022 4F + 25%) K 25% (2022
4 136%)  FR2023F3A31H FTAHE
tEFPEAMGEAERERERRERD
8% (20224 : 6%) °

EMERREREZREERLRRER

4+

Eo

AEBERBEEMBREERE KM
LA BHEBGEEEE  YRmAR
U BR R I R B (0 P B M AR A RO TR A
BEE - ME BEFERBARESE
B S L e ) R LB 2 IS e

AR E R EBORR R R RIE LR ERE
ZEEBWT

At 1 April m4A1H 1,605 2,023
Currency translation differences INEME EE (69) (52)
Reversal of impairment of trade and bills FEU R R R EHE B E

receivables (228) (366)
At 31 March M3HA318 1,308 1,605

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book
carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13 8% ANFAREMBERIE

Rental, utility and other deposits e 2ARBREMZS 433 423
Prepayments for purchase of inventories and BEFERBEERENTIE

consumables 13,590 10,872
Prepayments for purchase of property, plantand & E ¥ - Wi&E k& EH B RE

equipment 236,728 110,020
Other prepayments H T8 B 24,996 9,386
Value-added tax recoverable A g [o] 38 5 ¢ 36,862 21,694
Import duty receivables FEUCE AT 4,456 =
Social welfare receivables from staff FEUE TR FIE 3,458 908
Interest receivables FE YR B 3,115 106
Others Hfth 5,077 3,506

328,715 156,915

Less non-current portion: WIERE S -
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and BE B ¥ % « BE KR EB N 08

equipment (236,728) (110,020)
Current portion itk Ik b2 91,987 46,895

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:

Be  BANFAREMEBRERZAT
B¥5IE

VND WEE 252,284 97,265
RMB AR 34,000 31,505
uss ETT 25,116 20,656
MOP SR P 9,364 6,585
HKS BT 7,951 904
328,715 156,915 “
BERGBERERAE 2022 /2023 F 3§ 129
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

13

14

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2023, due to the short-term nature of deposits and other
receivables, except for the prepayments and value-added tax recoverable which
are not financial assets, the carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values (2022: same).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the carrying amount
of deposits and other receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all deposits and other
receivables. Information about the impairment of deposits and other receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

WA

13

AU HRRME (R)

Be BENREREGERKE(E)
M2023F3A31H ARIEE RHAME
WRIEMRPMNTE  BRIEMRERTK
EUEEBIWIESRMEEIN - e REAM
JEWFIBEMREESEL QA AEES (2022
& E) -

REER BEXEERBRAIRE REM
FEUWRIRZ FREE - NEB Y EFBE
] 40 G EFEAR -

REBRBE LY RERERSE WM
e EtBEBEERE  UmER
T R EMEYGRIRERRELE G HNE
HIBERE - ARRE REMERFR
WMERARAEBEERR - SMNERR R
MEREBREERHERHIEES

14 RARBERABBNEREE BF

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Assets: EE:
Unlisted financial product (Note a) ELtmerER(Mita) - 44,018
Derivative financial instruments PTEemMIA
— Foreign currency forward contracts (Note b) —HINEBIRERE £ (B FED) 276 =
276 44,018
Liabilities: a8E:
Derivative financial instruments MEEBIA
— Foreign currency forward contracts (Note b) —HNEBIRERE A (FF T b) 77 =
Notes: B
(@ On 31 March 2022, the Group has invested RMB35,700,000 (equivalent to (@) M2022%3 A31 8 - AREEEERITET
approximately HK$44,018,000) into the interest-bearing unlisted financial product VYREFABEILITERERKRET AR
with the bank. Such product was matured during the year ended 31 March 2023. #& 35,700,000 7T (#8 & F 49 44,018,000 7

(b) As at 31 March 2023, the notional principal amounts of the Group’s outstanding
foreign currency forward contracts were US$6,000,000 (2022: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Please refer to Note 3.1 for further
information.

2022 /2023 Annual Report

JL) e MEMPREZE2023F3A318 1k
FRERH -

(b) M 202343 A31H - REEZ KBHHN
BIRAIE 42 B & AN ¥E A 6,000,000 &
TL (20226 : &) o

REERBRAMRAREFTAEBZDD
CREEMEBNRRKEERRAEZER
REFABSNEREENKREE - &
ZEMB2RME3 -



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 15 BEeRBESEEEEUREHRRITER

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEIER 1,187,110 1,545,128

Short-term bank deposits HERITER 160,383 -
1,347,493 1,545,128

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book REHEB  EREERBARITEESZ

carrying value of the cash at banks. BREE -

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the RekBREeFEEEUREHRITER

following currencies: RATERIME :

uss$ E 907,873 1,093,266
RMB AR 383,859 309,630
HKS T 44,506 132,164
EUR BT 8,218 3
VND WA 2,898 4,636
Others H 110 195
LKR HEBREL 29 5,234

1,347,493 1,545,128
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

(Cont'd)

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB amounted
HK$254,006,000 (2022: HK$207,880,000) and VND amounted HK$2,898,000 (2022:
HK$4,636,000) are primarily deposited with banks in the PRC and Vietnam. The
conversion of RMB and VND denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC and Vietnam are subject to rules and
regulations on foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government
and the Vietnam Government, respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.05% to 2.98% per annum at 31 March 2023 (2022: 0.04% to 2.85%
per annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31
March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Effective annual interest rate ERRE R E
Maturities B!

HEMBRENE (B)

15 BeRREEEBAUREHRITER

(%)
AEBEBNUAREEBEEIE RS R
SR 1T 45 82 9 Bl A 254,006,000 7 JT (2022
£ : 207,880,000 JT) 2,898,000 7T
(20224 : 4,636,000/ 7C) * JhEZF N
RPBERSEZRT - SARE RME
BRI E 2 e AR INE LA RIERZE A
B I it F 5 1N /B 8 ST R B BT K R R
I35 Rl 2 SNEE HIIR B R R E o

IBITIR SR IBITE BIF R R A F BB
FE - R2023F3A31BEEN T &
£0.05% %= 2.98% (2022 4F : HE0.04% %
2.85%) °

R 2023F K& 2022F3 8318 - EHEIERTT
GRZEREMNERIBAMOT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
3.96% 2.20%

29-365 days H 29-365 days H

Information about the impairment of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits and the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022 /2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Share capital

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

16 RA - RORERBRESS
(a) BA&

At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 R 2021F 4818 K&

2022%3HA31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,411,208 1,411
Repurchase and cancellation of fED R T ARk
ordinary shares (Note i) (PR 3ET) = = (2,687) 3)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,408,521 1,408
Notes: Bt 3T

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company repurchased a total of
2,687,000 shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$7,369,000. As at 31
March 2023, all share repurchased by the Company have been cancelled.

(i) The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares and the premiums paid on these shares upon the repurchase
were charged against the share premium account.

(b) Share premium
In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company is in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

() BE20BF3838LEFE AR
BIA4ERA(E 7,369,000 8 T HE R A £
2,687,000 i% B 17 7220234 3 A 31
A ARRERNAERNDEEH -

(i) ARARZEBITRADRZFRND

ZHEERD - fsthE &SR X
N2 mEE RO E BRI -

(b) MR 7518
REFEFEARZEENE  RiE
EBRAHD K TARRRIR - HEARE]
REBZZREREEAR AHRE
NEEBFXEHBIET I MHER -

EXRGEERERAT | 2022/2023 F3§
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) 16 B2 - R EERBRESTE (F)
(c) BRRESTE

(c) Share option scheme

The Group's share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the granting of options
to eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3-9
years. These share options are exercisable at any time during the period from
11 October 2016 to 10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant
inputs to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an
expected option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%.
The volatility measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical
volatility of the Company.

Movements in share options are as follows:

AEBEBRETEIE RN 2007 F 4 A 27
HEARREmMRAERZHFAEAR
BIHEE MR o

M2013F 108118 EER/ILE
MAEEREERLERE  UHEHE
ERTEETRIGETLRES K
10,000,000 g R A A I - BB E A
ZENF - ZFERETR 20164 10
A11BZE2023%F10A10 BB AE
AT RS AT o

ER2013F 1011 AR BB KR E
PRI L B EA R R E A 18,529,000 7%
T A AT EREE -
ZEBEAETEERERTEBH K
BR9.988 7T  1TTHEERSET
BIEAR45% BEFEREDRER
9% - FEEAEREHR A10FREFE
ERARFN K A200%:E - RFH A
HZREETREARRRZBEIES
MMmErE ©

BREZEZPWT :

At beginning of year REA 7,900,000 8,050,000
Lapsed during the year FAKRK (350,000) (150,000)
At end of year RER 7,550,000 7,900,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

il RITERRE BB A RITE
BT :

Expiry date B!

10 October 2023 2023510 A 10 H

7,550,000 7,900,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

17 RESERVES 17 %

AttAprilozn  RManf4ArB 100 89305 806 4193 B 1294759 20330604
Profit attributable to equity holders RAAEREEARE ST
of the Company - - - - - 572677 572,677
Currency translation differences NEREEE = = 114761 e = = 114761
Toil comprehensive ncome - REMARR SR S e SR T SIET s
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:
Share-based compensation expense HRABERzBE % 1
(Note 24) (B3 24) - - - 585 - - 585
Lapse of share options BREXH = = = (3) = 3 =
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - 20,759 - - = (20759) =
2020/2021 final dividends 20002001 ERERE = = - = = (310,466) (310466)
2021/2022 interim dividends W15 BkE - - - = = (296,353) (296,353)
Totdtensactionvithowners  BEBARGEE SO VL S e R T (627546 ____ (606,234 _
At 31 March 2022 R202E3831A 1,000 456,004 402,787 14,692 35 1,239,890 2,114,468
Representing; R
Proposed final dividend (Note 26) BERERE (W) 197,569
Others Ay 1042321
1,239,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

17 RESERVES (Cont'd) 17 &4 (&)

AttApilo2  RamF4AIB 1000 456064 2781 14692 35 1239890 2114468
Profit attributable to equity holders RRAER B ARG ST
of the Company - - - - - 268,572 268,572
Currency translation differences NEREEE - - (196,927) - - - (196,927)
Toil comprehiensive ncome - REMARR - - e - - MBS TGS
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:
Share-based compensation expense WRHBERZHETH
(Note 24) (Krsto4) - - - 310 - - 310
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - (60) - 60 -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - 16,478 - - - (16,478) -
2021/2022 final dividends W0 ERERE - - - - - (197,569) (197,569
2022/2023 interim dividends W3 ERE - - - - - (211,278 (211,278)
Totdtensactionvithowners  BEBARGEE R 16478 T o - (425,265 (408,537)
At 31 March 2023 R203%E3831A 1,000 472,542 205,860 14,942 35 1,083,197 1,777,576
Representing; R
Proposed final dividend (Note 26) BERERE (B3ks) 56,341
Others A 1,026,856
1,083,197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

17 RESERVES (Cont’d)
Notes:

0]

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau
and statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the Group's subsidiary
incorporated in Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax
profit to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to
50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to
be appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the
relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary.
Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase
capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

No other statutory reserves are required to be made by the Group in other
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

HEMBRENE (B)

17 &% (&)
MaE

()

(i)

ERGHBERARAT

BARREBIERIE2004F 11 A2 EHEMT
U BT B A AR (0 2 EE R AR &) h
BT RAEBEZ =5 -

ETE R IEORPIRE MBS 2 — R 8
RAZAERFERARDBEEMATL 2 —
RPN E A R R ERME -

RIERPI R A - ORI S 2 A
EEMNBARBBERBRE R R
N MABEEE  EEZHEERE
EHEEREBRAS0% A LE °

WA BIRS 2 B A RS EAEFE
RABERRCFERNERNBRITA
AR AR ) 3 0k 2 BT A SR S TOR
ERE -RBETHRAES L TRIAH
HEER I BZMBARZEERBITR
EoBREERBRABERERASE
1B OEMEARSIRBERIEARE T &

B

ZEERERBETEDIRTZMBARZ
BERAA -

REBEANNEE L ERMENEMA
AR E AR TE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

18 BORROWINGS 18 & &

Non-current: IEFE
Loan from a non-controlling interest of a — BB A R IEE B =
subsidiary (Note (1)) REER(HEE®0) 126,576 126,218
Current: TE
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii)) 52 BRER 1T & AR (P &E (i) 1,320,277 1,453,683
Notes: B
(i) The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in US$, )y —FEKIEB AR FEIE ISR ERIA
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not expected to be repayable within the next EHME - RERR RS RFEHE
12 months. The fair value of this balance approximates its carrying amount. EARARNRBEAANEE -ZE&EBRZA
AREHZFRERMEE -
(i) The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair values of the bank loans (i) RITEFIRFERFERFE RITERZ
approximates their carrying amounts. AAEHNEREEEE -
The Group’s bank borrowings, after taking into account of repayable on demand Bt RIZERKEREKER  AEBZRT
clause, are repayable as follows: BEEEEHRNOT

Within 1 year or on demand AR FRARRERER 1,320,277 1,453,683

N\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
The Group'’s bank borrowings repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates
are as follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

18 £ & (/&)
Rt B EZ A PAEFREENRITE
=3/

Within 1 year 1R 855,070 511,993
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2F 277,023 210,793
Between 2 and 5 years 2ESEF 188,184 730,897

1,320,277 1,453,683

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBRTEEZRAERATEES

B :

HKS BT 1,259,913 77,000
uss ETT 60,364 1,376,683
1,320,277 1,453,683

As at 31 March 2023, the weighted average interest rates at each of the
consolidated balance sheet date were 3.70% (2022: 1.09%).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$2,558,361,000 (2022: HK$3,409,674,000). Unused facilities as at the same date
amounted to approximately HK$1,238,084,000 (2022: HK$1,955,991,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
bank facilities.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's borrowings amounting to HK$910,511,000
(2022: HK$1,157,821,000) were secured by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company.

R2023F3A31H REGEEERE
=B A INEEFHF R E3.70% (2022

£ :1.09%) °

R2023F3 8318 AEEMNRITHRE
48 % #) 5 2,558,361,000 7 JT (2022 4 :
3,409,674,0007% 7T) ° AR A K K & A
R & 49 /51,238,084,000 7 7T (2022 4F -

1,955,991,000 % 7T) ©

R2023F38318 AEEDETHR

TTREMMBERIE -

MR2023F3HA31H A&EE AR
910,511,000 3 7T ( 2022 £F : 1,157,821,000
BIT) ZEERARRIREMDEERAR

AR

BERGEBERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 18 & (#)
Information about the Group's exposure to liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and BRASERDESRR  INERR &
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1. The exposure of the Group’s borrowings FERBAERERI - AEBEEERN
to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates were as follows: FIEBLREBRERAEHNENEERBHET
LU

6 months or less 7B A 3A R 1,320,277 1,453,683
19 DEFERRED TAXATION 19 EAEHE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EREEATAHITENGENAMSHEE

enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax LENHAFRGH B EENE  BREMGH

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income BERBEYRBE—HBEKELER

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different MERBITFRERBREREGEERLF

taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. BEELEESRE AU BREEMSH

EERBBEEREE-

The net movement in the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: EIEATEHEE,/(BFE)WFEBHNT

At 1 April ®4A1H (60,605) (47,694)
Charged to the consolidated statement of RERE B RN (M sk 26)

profit or loss (Note 26) (9,810) (11,858)
Transfer of withholding tax to current tax liabilities BN F B = AT IBB A E 16,652 =
Currency translation differences INEE A = R 18 (1,053)
At 31 March MR3A31H (53,745) (60,605)

140 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2022/2023 Annual Report



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

19 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 19 ELEHIE ()
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into BEFSREERAEEE (R RE—
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as MGREREREE &R DT
follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BERMGEHEE -

At 1 April 2021 R2021%E4818 21,548 21,548
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss: WA (F0RR) -

- Due to changes in timing differences —HREREZEE# 1,030 1,030
Currency translation differences SN E 1,797 1,797
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R20224F 3831 AKR20225481H 24,375 24,375
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss: Rz A(FOR) -

- Due to changes in timing differences —HREREEREES 594 594

— Due to changes in tax rate —HRAREXES) (8,780) (8,780)
Currency translation differences INEE A = R (1,266) (1,266)
At 31 March 2023 720233 H31H 14,923 14,923
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFMEHARE :

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4818 7,442 61,800 69,242
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss: R FORR) -

- Due to changes in timing differences ~ — A H = RE g 350 12,538 12,888
Currency translation differences INE IR E =R @) 2,857 2,850

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 MR2022F3A31HK

2022F4H81H 7,785 77,195 84,980
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss: RBaEE A (F0BR) -
- Due to changes in timing differences ~ — B AR = R & 5,624 (4,000) 1,624
Transfer of withholding tax to TR B B &= A BRI R IE
current tax liabilities afE - (16,652) (16,652)
Currency translation differences INEEE = 2R (22) (1,262) (1,284)
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 13,387 55,281 68,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

FEMBRRNE (F)

20 BENRRRRE

Trade payables JE A BR 3R 625,803 575,028
Bills payables R EE 3,285 17,663
629,088 592,691

The book carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair
values.

Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. The aging
analysis based on invoice date on trade and bills payables were aged as follows:

N

ENEREREZREESEE

4+

Eo

AEM

EFETZEEH BN T0ENXK -
ERBEZAHMIENERRZEZ R
WM

0-60 days 0-60 K 623,186 591,782
61-120 days 61-120 K 595 =
121 days-1 year 121 K-14 5,307 909

629,088 592,691

Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies:

ENEREERZATERFINE :

uss ETT 561,536 506,412
RMB AR 46,064 64,123
VND el 17,353 12,093
HKS BT 4,135 10,063

629,088 592,691

Information about the Group's exposure to liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and

i interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

21 EFHEE REAMENKE

Accrual for operating expenses EERY ZEFIEE 35,490 25,229
Payables for purchase of property, BEME BEREEZ

plant and equipment (Note) FE AT FRIE (B 5E) 47,480 -
Provision for employee benefits expense EEBMZ HEE (BELLL)

(including bonus) 60,177 76,533
Estimated customer claims HEBEFPRE 16,079 18,412
Provision for reinstatement costs (X YN 29,637 37,957
Contract liabilities EHEE 7,517 5,503
Retention payables (Note) FERRE 2 (MFE) 12,683 =
Value-added tax (“VAT") payables FERTIGER ([H5EF]) 5,201 =
Others H At 10,108 12,101

224,372 175,735
Less: non-current portion A IERBER
Provision for reinstatement costs BE K AR (29,637) (37,957)
Retention payables (Note) FERHRE 2 (MFE) (12,683) =
Current portion ik Ik 182,052 137,778

Note: The payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment and retention
payables were related to the construction-in-progress of factory located in
Vietnam. The retention period is over 2 to 3 years after acceptance check, and as

such the balance was classified as non-current.

Movement of provision for reinstatement costs is as follows:

Bie: : BBEWE - WE KRB E MR
R FEAHRE & BRI BRI H) TR e
ERETEEM - REMEBERIIE2
B35 AMZEBDBRIERD °

As at 1 April R4 818 37,957 37,310
Reversal [l (9,000) (1,049)
Imputed interest of provision for reinstatement & 8 ik 7Zx & & #E 7E 1 B

costs (Note 25) (Fft3E25) 1,235 1,100
Currency translation differences SNEE A = 2R (555) 596
As at 31 March M3 H31H 29,637 37,957
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 21 Bt EE R EMENSRE (H)

Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies: FERTIE B R E M B RIBE L T EET
A

RMB AR 83,609 67,541
uss EV 66,088 14,193
HKS BT 40,799 50,885
Others HAib 33,876 43,116

224,372 175,735

Information about the Group'’s exposure to liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

22 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET

FRASERDESRR  SNERR R
MER 2 BRSNS -

22 HW AR Etl = — 58

Other income: HupgA
Sale of scrap materials B ER 31,116 40,463
Utilities income AP ON 41,589 35,964
Rental income GEEA N 3,247 3,196
Government grants IR 7S #85 Bh 7,067 2,754
Handling income BRI A 240 1,158
Sub-contracting income o BERA 280 948
Sundry income (Note (i)) FEIEUA (B E () 10,687 18,946
... 94,226 103429
Other gains — net: H s —F 58
Derivative financial instruments MTESBIA-—IINERRELD
— foreign currency forward contracts 199 19,811
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERXBZER
plant and equipment (3,246) (565)
Net foreign exchange losses SNEE 5 1B FHE (32,312) (30,262)
s (3839 (11,016)
58,867 92,413
Note: B 5
(i) Sundry income represents insurance indemnity for water damage of yarn, accident () HMBRAEDENKE FREEWEKX

MRRBES

and missing goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

23

24

EXPENSES BY NATURE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

23 BMEATHRX

Cost of inventories TFERKA 3,922,144 4,561,256
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #12 ~ BE MR EITE (Mite)

(Note 6) 167,120 180,461
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) CAREERE (ME7) 6,695 6,349
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EE®BAKZ (BREEZHE)

emoluments) (Note 24) (B 5% 24) 575,059 713,658
Freight charges HEBER 27,025 53,955
Lease payments for short-term and R RMEEEEAFIE

low value leases 1,294 1,178
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BXAD 7

— Audit services —EBZ R 3,308 2,937

- Non-audit services —EEZRI 468 303
Others Hh 29,056 21,965
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HERN DERHEERTRE

expenses and general and administrative H—RRITERAX

expenses 4,732,169 5,542,062

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

24 BERARMXZ (BREEMHE)

Wages, salaries, and allowances TE& - % KER 483,821 618,598
Retirement benefit — defined contribution RREHN — EREEFRE 2 (M5 @)

schemes (Note (a)) 41,412 44,072

Welfare and benefits B R & 49,516 50,403

Share-based compensation expense ARG D B AR 2 Bl € S i 310 585

575,059 713,658
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MIHEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Cont’d)

(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at a fixed percentage of the basic salaries
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its
contributions. The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% (2022: 5%)
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 (2022: HKS$1,500) per month and thereafter contributions are

voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored
employees’ social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The
Group contributes to the scheme at 18% (2022: 18%) of the basic salaries
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap. The state-sponsored social
insurance scheme is responsible for the pension obligations payable to retired

employees.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023 include 3 directors (2022: 3 directors), whose
emoluments are disclosed in Note 34. The aggregate emolument payable to
the remaining 2 individuals (2022: two individuals) is as follow:

oy

FREBBRRME (R)

24 BERARAX (BEEEHS) ()

(a)

(b)

BRARER - EREMANE

ARRRRAE 2 M 8RB AT B
PR HE T B R B IR AR IR AR M ET 8 2 X
B -AEERMBAREREAH
ZBIE A D maEr 8l R (T8
BRE—LER) - MR WE
ERARASRBEBEN 28—
B -EREEZRAFEEERR
KEEXNMBRAKS -

AEEDLZEHEBBRE S Noa St
NTESETE ([aFEEErE) - Z&t
SAEARBYZEATE Z EEMRE
Z - IBERESHE  AEERHEE
BiRAHEAESKIEEREZREN
A2 5% (20226 = 5%) & A A EI{E
B - AEBEREEHKEUNE A
1,500/ 7T (20224 : 1,500 70) &
R EBFEHsHABEREMEET -

AAERBE B AR AEMERE
BRBER#ITZIEELSRETEIE
B - AEBIZMEAREEER
e 218%(2022F 1 18%) (TMBBXE
— LR mEHEIEH R - BIRHETT
ZHERBITEAERRKESRE
BRE -

EEBREHAL
HE2023F3A31HILFEE - A&EH
ZS5BBERBATRIEIRES (2022
F:3REE) HEZHESRW T34
W -ENBRT2EALTZHE R
(202F - MBAAL)WT :

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FExT FH&T

Salaries and allowances e MOER 6,591 6,736

Discretionary bonuses 5 4L 2,070 2,620
Retirement benefit — defined contribution RIRE ) — B RE R GT 2

schemes - 18

8,661 9,374
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 24 EERAHX(ERESMHL) (&)

(Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d) (b) EEBSF AL (E)
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following FEEALTCMEE TINEHE 2 A
bands:

(c)

HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78 JT 2 4,000,000 7 JT 1 -
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T & 4,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T 2 5,000,000 7 7T 1 1

2 2

Senior management remuneration by band

The number of senior management with emoluments fell within the following

bands:

() GREEEFMHEE
SREEBABEMEEENT

Nil-HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,0008 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 3 4
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% JT & 2,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 78 JT = 3,000,000 7 7T 3 2
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 78 JT & 3,500,000 7 7T 4 2
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78 JT 2 4,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T = 4,500,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 78 7T 2 5,000,000 7% 7T 1 1

14 14
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

FEMBRRNE (F)

25 BB A R A

Finance income: BRI
- Bank interest income —HRITAEHA 21,591 4,876
— Net foreign exchange gain on cash and —BHekReFHEELMEL KRS
cash equivalents i 28,317 11,249
.. 49,908 16,125
Finance costs: MR
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITEZMEFX (47,630) (11,382)
- Net foreign exchange loss on bank loans —RITERWEXEEBFE (1,665) (7,928)
— Interest expenses arising from lease liabilites —THEBBEAMNFBHX (1,626) (1,565)
— Imputed interest of provision for — S IE P AR B R B
reinstatement cost (1,235) (1,100)
(52,156) (21,975)
Less: amount capitalised B E 1,967 =
(50189 (21,975)
Net finance cost B % A AR F B (281) (5,850)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise income tax has been
provided for at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Vietnam enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of
20% (2022: 20%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Macau enterprise
income tax has been provided for at the rate of 12% (2022: 12%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 26 FREHMA X (8)
Two of the Group's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are recognised as a High and REBZE2023F3A3IBLEFE  AEE
New-technology Enterprise which have been granted tax concessions by the local EMETEFMHBARERTAST
tax bureau and were entitled to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at concessionary rate Bt BHAiHRBRATHEESR
of 15% during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). RIS EER RGN ECEMSG

(20226 ) o

During the year ended 31 March 2023, one of the Group's subsidiaries in the REBZE2023F3A3BLEFE  AEE
PRC is entitled to an additional deduction on research and development ("R&D") ER—HHEEBARZEEBEINIFE
expenses for which the R&D expenses is incurred in the profit or loss by that R (A% ]) MR - S EhH
subsidiary in the course of carrying out manufacturing activities (2022: same). XThEZNEARERREE TR

BRRESEES (20224F - HR) °

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss RiraBEmRIBRZMEH B A ¢
represents:

Current income tax BVERFR 15 B
- Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 14,997 20,881
- Overseas income tax —BINFTISTR 21,566 34,093
Over-provision in prior years M FE BB (2,826) =
Deferred tax (Note 19) RERBIE (5 19) 9,810 11,858

43,547 66,832
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BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits

of the consolidated entities as follows:

FEMBRRNE (F)

26 FIEH A ()
BN SR [ P AS A A A A 2 BHOR SRR E A
REAEREMNZ METFHREFEL
BREBEIERNT

Profit before income tax FiT 15 B¢ A A 317,196 646,067
Less: Vo
Associates results reported net of tax ENRZ 2WMEBCTER) (18,425) (34,890)
Impairment of interest in associate H—REE A ARMNER2RE 46,609 =
345,380 611,177
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic REARAERERDEER 2 I
tax rate applicable to profits in respective FEHM A RAE 2 A
jurisdictions 57,522 95,588
Income not subject to tax BERBA (4,443) (1,735)
Effect of income tax rate changes FERBEges o8 7,888 =
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Rk k7 11,775 3,312
Tax concession BER (20,618) (24,074)
Previously unrecognised tax loss FRIARTER 2 HIBEE (1,093) (2,559)
Other unrecognised temporary difference HtABEREYRER (12,160) (16,238)
Tax on certain undistributed retained profitofa B A & REiE R BE TADIK
subsidiary and associates R A 2 B8 5,793 12,538
Difference in tax rate over current tax and BV EA 5 18 B3R SE R 18 2
deferred tax HEER 1,709 -
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBBERE (2,826) =
43,547 66,832

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.7% (2022: 15.6%). The change in

weighted average applicable tax rate is due to a change in the profitability of the

Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in

issue, excluding treasury shares, during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

27 BREF
(a) EF
FRERNZFZAQTERITE AR
1675 F bR FF 0 B BT RR (9 I 19 2K
(TEEEGFR®)FE -

ARRERFE ARG

Weighted average number of shares in issue
(thousands)

B BT R I 8 (TR

Basic earnings per share (HKS per share)

268,572 572,677
1,409,868 1,411,208
Bt) 0.19 0.41

(b) Diluted

-

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share options to employees for

years ended 31 March 2023 (2022: same).

Since the average market price of the Company’s shares during the year is less
than the assumed exercise price of the share options, the potential ordinary
shares were not included in the calculation of the diluted earnings per share
as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted earnings per
share for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is the same as basic

earnings per share of the respective year.

(b) #58
SREERFINRE LR BEE
EEBERMARDRITL AR I
FHHEE -NEE2023F3H31H
IEFERDFE MEBBHITHERE
(2022%F : #[A) -

HARARBRGREANFHHE
ERBRERRITEE BUiTES
% #4582 I I\ AT A B e Y
B AATAZERNDSER RS
SE o Ht B E 2023 F K 20223 A
NNELEFENSRESRFEERER
FEMNSREARFNMER -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

28 DIVIDENDS 28 BRE

Interim dividend paid of HK$15 cents BEIREEBE ISz P ERE
(2022: HK$21 cents) (Note (i) (20224 : ¥ 211L) (B G)) 211,278 296,353
Proposed final dividend of HK$4 cents FORS A 4L 2 REIR B
(2022: HK$ 14 cents) (Note (ii) (2022 4F = ¥ 14400) (B GD)) 56,341 197,569
267,619 493,922
Notes: B 5
(i) On 24 November 2022, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an interim () M202F11 A28 ARREEZERE
dividend of HK$15 cents per share (2022: HK21 cents per share) for the six-month IRE £ 2022%F9 308 (k<8 A HRE
period ended 30 September 2022. The amount was paid in December 2022. ARG BB 1510 (2022 F « B E
211l) ~ZEHRIBEER2022F 12 AT -
(i) On 23 June 2023, the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of (i) M2023F6 A3 ARAIEER/E
HK$4 cents (2022: HK$14 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2023. This FEIREE2023F3A3IBIEFERXR
proposed dividend has not been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated R EFRRABEE 4L (20224 : B 14
financial statements as at 31 March 2023. fili) o %R AR B 3 R 7R 20234 3 A 31

BHGEMBREARRABEMNERS -
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 29 MEBRERERHF

(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEEEZHES
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before income tax P13 %5 B g A 317,196 646,067
Adjustments for: A T&IE 2 HE -
Share of profits of associates DG E R R Z 5 A (18,425) (34,890)
Impairment of interests in an associate H—REE NN ZRE 46,609 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BE R RGBT E 167,120 180,461
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,695 6,349
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREE2EE
equipment 3,246 565
Share-based compensation expense At BER e b 310 585
Provision of/(reversal of provision) for slow- W NRET SRE S (BE
moving and obsolete inventories, net B F8E 3,272 (34,905)
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables JFE Uk BR SR B e (228) (366)
Net fair value gain on derivative financial TEeRIANAABERZFE
Instruments (199) -
Finance income LR ON (49,908) (16,125)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 50,189 21,975
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & & B) ] 2 48 & 4 525,877 769,716
Decrease in inventories FERD 192,023 64,618
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills W BER R EER A (M)
receivables 111,843 (73,770)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments Be - B FRIE K& H th fE Y R IE
and other receivables (38 ),k (47,628) 14,005
Decrease in amounts due from associates FE W B 5 A B IE R A 450 11,217
Change in derivative financial instruments PMESRMIAEH - 12,155
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables — FEfTBRR R ZIEE I, G 4) 39,645 (132,649)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other FERTIE B K H b FE T ROBE I
payables OB ) 64,090 (29,912)
Cash generated from operations LEEACZHS 886,300 635,380
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of (b) RZEREFRERAN  HEWE K
property, plant and equipment comprise: ERSBEREREBAIE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T T
Net book amount of property, plant and Y REMEEREFE
equipment 9,661 2,410
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERREZEE
equipment (3,246) (565)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BE KZBEATSKIE
equipment 6,415 1,845

153
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

29 RERERBRMKE (F)

154

(c) Reconciliation of net debt in financing activities

(0 MEFHERFRHR

Asat 1 April 2021 R2021%54818 125375 645443 417 812,035
New bank borrowings MERITEE = 1,336,981 = 1,336,981
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEE - (537,767) = (537,767)
Addition of leases MEng - - 2,079 2,079
Accrued interest EZTFIE - - 1,565 1,565
Payment for lease liabilities IRHERE - - (8811) 8811)
Exchange currency alignment A E 843 9,026 (935) 8,934
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R2022%38318K 20224818 126,218 1,453,683 35115 1,615,016
Asat 1 April 2022 R2022%481H 126,218 1,453,683 35,115 1,615,016
New bank borrowings HEBTEE - 548,452 - 548,452
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEE - (684,692) - (684,692)
Accrued interest FEZTFI S - - 1,626 1,626
Payment for lease liabilities INHERE - - (3,018) (3,018)
Exchange currency alignment B % 358 2,834 (413) 2,779
As at 31 March 2023 R2023E3H31H 126,576 1,320,277 33,310 1,480,163
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRME ()

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 AEEE
At 31 March 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2022: Nil). MR2023F3A31H AEBWEE KL

BEEQ022F &) -

For contingent liabilities relating to associates, please refer to Note 9. BB ERNR X EABRLMME -
31 COMMITMENTS 31 A&E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet REERBETHEMAREEZBARH
incurred is as follows: ST

Contracted but not provided for: BRI X EREE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRB 597,487 264,265
At 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any significant share of capital M2023F3A31H - AEBEIWE DG
commitments of its associates (2022: Nil). BRI EREREE (20226 : &) o
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor (b) REHENRE-FEEERHAA
The future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable AR IR A BAE A4S & TR 4 FE U A R 2R
operating leases are as follows: EHESHELBOT :

As lessor: EREMEA
Not later than 1 year BB 1F 315 341
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years B FETEBIBSF 34 125

349 466
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEBHBRRME (E)
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EREALTRS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or
exert significant influence over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

The directors are of the view that the following entities were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group during the year.

EBEATIEAERNIES - BE TS
FE T S B Al SRR B TR T
MATITEERTZE NN AL  BRE
XEHEEEHSMWFIRE G EE®
B R B sk A eI A+ KA R A E
BREFHNENZBEREEDRSEHA
+ o A B B S A A T IR
WEEEE FEEANLTAAEARE
fthE 88 o

%%wuz\% T§UE\E¥7%£EW = ,\Z’KEI
ETRGAERERZBMEAL -

Name Relationship with the Group
=F BEALEZBE
Toray Industries, Inc. A substantial shareholder
FERR
Teejay Lanka PLC An associate
TN
SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. An associate
FIER(BMN) AEHBERERAR BN
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HMBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBERME (E)

32 EEEALIRS ()
(a) BEBEALTETZRZUOT :

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FH&T
Sales of goods HEEm
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (ii)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff 5 (i) 31,271 34,974
Purchase of materials BE MR
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (i) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Ff 5% (1)) 11,488 70,733
Rental income HEBA
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (iii)) —ETEKR(BM) RELHEE M
B R | (B 3 (i) 2,831 3,020
Sub-contracting income 28K A
— SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (ii)) —ETIE KR (BM) RELHEE M
BIR 2~ (3 i) 223 412
Handling income BEEKA
- Teejay Lanka PLC (Note (iv)) —Teejay Lanka PLC (FiI&E (iv)) 299 880
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (iv)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff % (iv)) - 278
299 1,158
Commission paid for services MREFAZAEE
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff 7 (v)) - 12
Royalty fee BHHE
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Ff 7 (v)) 18 11
Dividend income received from associates ElEE ATREBRA
— Teejay Lanka PLC —Teejay Lanka PLC 6,450 15,164
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. —(ETER(BIMN) ABELHEESR
BERAA] 7,298 7,543
13,748 22,707
Notes: ffsE -
(i) Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by the Group and the () ERBENEREXEBBREFEAR
substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business. EEEEZRRARGE 2 BIRHE
G

(i) EmHEREYBWATIER T XK
BRETRAEEESHBALLR
7€ Z AR #ETT K UER

(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually
agreed by the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of business.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties (Cont'd):
Notes (Cont'd):

(iii) Rental income is determined based on the size of the property and the
relevant market rate.

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value

of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties.

(v) Commission and royalty fee are paid at prices mutually agreed by the Group
and the substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business.

(b) Year-end balances

FEMBRRNE (F)

32 FHEALRS (&)
(a) EERBEATETZXZOT (&) :
M () -

(i) e WATIER Y EEEEBE T
SERETE °

(iv) [ — R E QR W EURIE &R 2N
ERBENRNREBABITE TRE
HEBEE2%E3%RE  MEREE
R Ry & HRHE -

v BERFFFREIZANEE ST BN
RPNAEEBBREDHABENE
RN o

(b) R G 8k

Trade in nature: EH5ME
Amount due from SPM Automotive Textiles Co.  EUWETE K (EMN) AEBEHHE

Ltd. for sub-contracting income and rental mARAT S BRA KRB A

income 383 941
Trade in nature: ZH514E
Amount due from Teejay Lanka PLC arising ERAEEEEME S ZIE W Teejay

from purchase of goods on behalf Lanka PLC 0IE 555 447
Amount due from Toray Industries, Inc. arising B A E & ME £ 2 E U Toray

from sales of goods on behalf Industries, Inc. 3K I8 2,561 8,037

3,116 8,484

Trade in nature: E5ME
Amount due to Toray Industries, Inc. arising E 8 MR E & 2 FE 5 Toray

from purchase of materials Industries, Inc. 3K I8 2,324 4,149

(c) Key management compensation

(c) TEEBAEHE

Salaries, bonus and allowances e - TEA KRR 56,512 70,596

Retirement benefits — defined contribution RRAE ) — & B RGT 2
schemes 141 123
56,653 70,719
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HMBER

HERBRENE (F)

33 ARAEERERRAREZEE

Balance sheet of the Company ARARAEEEER
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
__Interestsin subsidiaries  KMELRc#E 0 1478297 1478,297
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al NGIE S 1,016,979 1,308,222
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE R 20,955 25,690
1,037,934 1333912
Total assets EEHE 2,516,231 2,812,209
EQUITY R
Share capital A& < 1,408 1,411
Share premium A& 17 4 B 1,295,880 1,303,246
Reserves G 643,375 1,042,406
1940663 2,347,063
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings BE 409,766 298,697
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B K E (< RRIB 3,706 4,353
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NGRS E 162,096 162,096
O 575,568 465,146
Total liabilites = #&f#&x 575,568 465146
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAR 2,516,231 2,812,209

The balance sheet of the Company has been approved by the Board of Directors
on 23 June 2023 and has been signed on behalf.

Masaru Okutomi
RERK
Director

EF

ARREEBEREN2023F6A23H
EEERPENTHUTEERREE -

Tou Kit Vai
AR

Director

EF

BEARGHEZERERAH

2022 /2023 FiR
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

3BALARNEERBRERABE 22D ()

Reserve movement of the Company

RATREZEY

At 1 April 2021 M2021F4H1H 14,139 827,430 35 841,604
Profit for the year B3l = 807,036 = 807,036
Share-based compensation expense DR BEM 2B E = H 585 = = 585
Lapse of share options BRELN (32) 32 S S
2020/2021 final dividends 202012021 FR AR S - (310,466) = (310,466)
2021/2022 interim dividends 2021202 EFRERE = (296,353) - (296,353)
At 31 March 2022 #2022F3H31H 14,692 1,027,679 35 1,042,406
Representing: TR
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) BEaRERE (M) 197,569
Others Hitr 830,110

1,027,679
At 1 April 2022 R2022F 4810 14,692 1,027,679 35 1,042,406
Profit for the year FEEF - 9,506 - 9,506
Share-based compensation expense WD AER B E S 1 310 - - 310
Lapse of share options i PN (60) 60 - -
2021/2022 final dividends 2021/2022 F KBRS - (197,569) - (197,569)
2022/2023 interim dividends 2022/2003 FE R HR B = (211,278) - (211,278)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H 14,942 628,398 35 643,375
Representing: R
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) EaRERE (fF2s) 56,341
Others Hith 572,057

628,398

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GEMEHRERNE (E)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 3 EERBETRAEBZHE
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERRETHRAEZHE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company AEBEER BNRAREZZHER
by the Group are as follows: BT
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows: HE223F3A3NALEE SEH2
BemT

Executive directors BITES

Masaru Okutomi (Chief executive officer) B & s (7T 44 %) 1,000 3,310 — 4,310
Wan Wai Loi FEK 750 5,983 - 6,733
Tou Kit Vai A= L 1,000 3,310 18 4,328
Kyuichi Fukumoto BT — 1,000 2,355 = 3,355
Non-executive director (note) FEHITESE ()

Lau Yiu Tong Elpde - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BMYFEHITES

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FER 8 K. 263 - - 263
Ng Ching Wah higEE 263 = = 263
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel eSS 263 - - 263
Ling Chi Wo Teresa & BUR 22 - - 22

4,561 14,958 18 19,537
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

FEMBRRNE (F)

3 EERBEETHRAEZHME (&)
EERBETBRAEZHS (F)
HEW2F3IANABLEFE SBE2
BT -

Executive directors HITES

Masaru Okutomi (Chief executive officer) B & Bs (7T #E#) 1,000 3,433 = 4,433

Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 17,352 = 18,852

Tou Kit Vai AR 1,000 3,895 18 4913

Toshiya Ishii AHE 833 2,272 = 3,105

Kyuichi Fukumoto BT — 167 339 = 506

Non-executive director (note) FEHITES (M)

Lau Yiu Tong 2rE = = = =

Independent non-executive directors B FHITESE

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PR A 263 = = 263

Ng Ching Wah higE 263 = = 263

Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel Hte B &6 263 - - 263
5,289 27,291 18 32,598

Note: Mr. Lau has waived any emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FEMBRRNE (F)

35 HERETHMERMIA

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHK AN e mEE
Trade and bills receivables FEURR R R R4 827,693 945,591
Deposits and other receivables %Re R H MW RIE 16,539 4,943
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 160,383 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekR&FEEE 1,187,110 1,545,128
Amount due from associate FE U B 2 B IR 938 1,388
Financial assets at fair value through other BAABEGT AHEMEEKE
comprehensive income CMEE 427 427
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBERFAEBRNEREE
profit or loss 276 44,018
2,193,366 2,541,495
Financial liabilities Eal-h=Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKR AR AR
Trade and bills payables FERERER R 629,088 592,691
Accruals and other payables FEGHIE B KB JE < KA 105,761 37,330
Borrowings BE 1,446,853 1,579,901
Lease liabilities HEBE 33,310 35115
Financial liabilities at fair value through BARBRFAEBRNEREE
profit or loss 77 -
2,215,089 2,245,037
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHAE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REXERE

Revenue A 5,018,735 6,066,310 5,384,897 5,476,196 6,119,081

Gross profit EF 489,987 776,318 861,689 924,578 1,060,901

Profit attributable to: THATEEET :

Equity holders of the Company AR AIHERFHAE A 268,572 572,677 721,491 743,489 861,780

Non-controlling interests FE 2 i) 1 5,077 6,558 13,848 24,440 8,479
273,649 579,235 735,339 767,929 870,259

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET mEEEAER

Non-current assets FERBEE 2,296,109 2,124,390 2,068,692 1,912,357 2,001,296
Current assets MBEE 3,233,208 3,819,804 3,142,672 2,900,817 2,528,941
Total assets EESLE 5,529,317 5,944,194 5,211,364 4813174 4,530,237
Current liabilities mBBE 2,190,965 2,261,676 1,624,654 1,613,402 1,051,550

Total assets less current liabilities & E A E R RSB B & 3,338,352 3,682,518 3,586,710 3,199,772 3,478,687

Non-current liabilities ERBAE 249,775 251,994 233,085 202,716 209,048

Total equity AR 3,088,577 3,430,524 3,353,625 2,997,056 3,269,639

Net current assets mENEEFE 1,042,243 1,558,128 1,518,018 1,287,415 1,477,391

Equity attributable to: THIA TG

Equity holders of the Company ZNA A4S A A 3,074,864 3,419,125 3,337,921 2,985,924 3,279,611

Non-controlling interests JEPEE ) 1 2 13,713 11,399 15,704 11,132 (9,972)
3,088,577 3,430,524 3,353,625 2,997,056 3,269,639
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP’S PROPERTIES
ARENE-BER

As at 31 March 2023 7202343 A31H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE SRIERERYES

Property Description Lot Number Type Lease Term

L/E R 1t B} 4R 5% kfid F£4

Hong Kong

B

Unit BT, B3 on 7/F and Car The property comprises unit B1 and Kwai Chung Town Lot No. 143 Industrial/ The property is held for a term

Parking Space (No.39) on G/F B3 on the 7th floor together with a Office of 99 years from 1 July 1898

Eastern Sea Industrial Building, car parking space on the ground floor. and renewed to 30 June 2047.

29/39 Kwai Cheong Rd. & 48/56 The property has saleable area of

Tai Lin Pai Rd. approximately 1,568 sq.m.

Kwai Chung NT

HRER ZMEAESERRBIE  ERAN  HBRTMERE 14358 I%/ ZWMEHI88ETRIARE

%EH29/39% R TEEM-ZNENERERED /- HBERBOE UBREE

REEBE 48/56 57 1568 F oK o 220476 A30R -

REIEAE

8HB1 B3ER

T EEM (F39%)

Mainland China

Rt

Liu Chong Tong Xin County, The property comprises several Lot No. * 21-0664 Industrial The land use right ( Lot No. :

Wan Qing Sha Town factory buildings, warehouses, Lot No. : 4401151002080125 21-0664) is held for a term up

Nansha, Guangzhou City sewage treatment plants, electric Lot No. : 4401151002080126 to 11 June 2048.

Guangdong Province, PRC heating plants, office buildings,

(Pacific Textiles Industrial City) dormitories, production facilities and The land use rights ( Lot
environmental facilities. The total land No. © 4401151002080125 &
area is around 421,523 sq.m. 4401151002080126 ) are held

for a term up to 17 October
2061.

HERERA ZMECEEEBE  BE AR WERE  21-0664 I% T ERE LRGSR :

B RER BRE HAR BE A HERET: 21-0664) 558 HIR 2 2048 F

HYEEDHE BERIERIRRAM c MLIMEEL  4401151002080125 6A1AB-

TORRER BANSBERRK o iR

(EAIER) 4401151002080126 T E AR CERER

4401151002080125 &
4401151002080126 ) ¥ % HA
BBZE2061F10A17H -
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP’S PROPERTIES

AREYE-BX

As at 31 March 2023

Vietnam

i)

Land Lot CN9, CN11 and CN12,
Lai Vu Industrial Zone, Lai Vu
Commune, Kim Thanh district,
Hai Duong Province

Lai Vu Industrial Zone, Lai Vu
Commune, Kim Thanh district,
Hai Duong Province

CN9 * CN11T R CN1231BR

Lot K1, Rang Dong Garment
and Textiles Industrial Zone,
Nghia Hung District, Nam Dinh
Province

Rang Dong Garment and
Textiles Industrial Zone, Nghia
Hung District, Nam Dinh
Province
K14 B8

The property mainly comprises factory

buildings and warehouses. The total

land area is around 308,504 sq.m.

GNETEORBERRE AL
HETE4) 5308504 F K o

The project of construction is in

progress. The total land area is around
312,000 sq.m.

VREBENTEAT - BLHE
B4 A312,000F 3K o

Lot CN9, CN11 and CN12

CN9 ~ CNT1 B CN12 3B,

Lot K1

K13 8%

R2023F3A31H

Industrial

Ix

Industrial

I

The land use right is held for a
term up to 12 January 2054.

TWEREREHRE
2054F 18128 °

The land use right is held for a
term up to 30 June 2065.

T {F R HR Z 2065
F6A3008 ¢

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’'s Report and Financial

Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

“2023 Financial Year”

AGM”

"Articles”

“Board”

"CG Code” or “Corporate
Governance Code”

"China”or "PRC"

"Company”

"Director(s)”

“Group”

“HKD” or usuor “HKS”

"HKSAR" or “Hong Kong”

“INED(s)"

“Listing Rules” or “Main Board
Listing Rules”

"L KR" or “RS”"

“Memorandum”

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

The Board of Directors of the Company

The Corporate Governance Code, stated in the
Appendix 14 to the Main Board Listing Rules

The People’s Republic of China

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange

The Director(s) of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Dollar

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

The Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the
Company

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time

Sri Lankan Rupee

the Memorandum of Association of the Company

as amended from time to time.

GLOSSARY
SRR

AR i A (38 32 A% BUAD i o5 52 B 7% & BB
Sh)  BREXEZEE THFEEREAN

Ta%:

[2023F B EE]

[RBFAE]

= RN

[E=/]

[EEERTA

[

[RAAE

[E=%]

[AEE ]

Mex]

(&%)

[ IFHITES ]

[EmARAI S E
R ETRA

[HTEMREL]

[EF2 R4

EXRGHBERBRAT |

HZE2023F3831BIEFE

ARABZBRBFRE

RARTEE 2 S
Al

RRARZEER

TR AR BB ER IO FR
BzhZEERTH

hE AR HAME
EARHBIERERRT
—FAR S8 SEMKL
ZEHRRERATE  EK
RBE AT £
RRARZESR
ARBREWMBRE
BT

hEARKNMBEEERE R
TH R

KRB ZBIIFNTES

RARHERT B R P8 55

EmRAl

HEWREL

ARRRITRET ZBHE
N i
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GLOSSARY
SHAR

“Model Code”

“Panyu Plant”

"RMB" or "CNY”

ISEQ”

g

“Share Option Scheme'

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shares”

“Stock Exchange”

"Teejay Lanka PLC"

“Toray”

“USD" or “USS”

"VND”

168 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Main Board Listing Rules

The factory run by Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited
located in Nansha of Guangzhou City, the PRC

“Renminbi/Chinese Yuan”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company pursuant to the written resolutions of
Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, and expired
on 17 May 2017

The Company’s Shareholder(s)

Shares of the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka PLC and Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka and
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange of Sri Lanka

Toray Industries, Inc., a company incorporated
under the laws of Japan and whose shares are
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in Japan, a
substantial Shareholder of the Company

United States Dollar

Vietnamese Dong

| 2022/2023 Annual Report

EESL

(&2 m]

[ARY]

a5 RIS D]

[ BB R At &1

R

[efn ]

[ B 52 A

[ Teejay Lanka PLC |

[Toray |

[%&t]

(A

IR PRI L
BITAEBETERRS
= 2 < 8

NRBEEMTEDHE R
(BEB)HBODNLEERA
AIEE 2 TR

AR

BERBEEN (BEE
Bl 571 %)

AN AR R AR R R 2007
F4P7BBRZE®R
TR BT A
BB R®R2017F5A17H
[E

KRR ZRE

NRQ B G REEO001
T2 &1

BRBMERZAERRAR

Teejay Lanka PLC (B 8
Textured Jersey Lanka PLC
K Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited) * — 1R
BHT BRSO
ZBERATF - ARG
BRMRRHeERRZ S E™

Toray Industries, Inc. * —
IR &R A AR 2 MR
ZRAERMRBEARR
REZXGRET BA
KRBz —BEERR

e
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